
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (ECONOMIC 

WELL-BEING) will be held in CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2011 at 7:00 PM and you are requested 
to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 
 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct the Minutes of the meeting held on 7th July 
2011. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 7 - 
12) 

 
 

 A copy of the current Forward Plan, which was published on 15th 
August 2011, is attached. Members are invited to note the Plan and 
to comment as appropriate on any items contained therein. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388006 

4. CALL CENTRE OPTIONS BEYOND 2012  (Pages 13 - 26) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Information Management 
Division regarding the options for the District Council’s Call Centre 
prior to its consideration by the Cabinet. 
 

C Hall 
388116 
M Hinton 
388196 
J Barber 
388105 

5. DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET  (Pages 27 - 32) 
 

 

 To consider and comment on a report by the Head of Housing 
Services prior to its submission to the Cabinet. 
 

S Plant 
388240 

6. FINANCIAL FORECAST  (Pages 33 - 56) 
 

 

 To consider and comment on a report by the Head of Financial 
Services prior to its submission to the Cabinet. 
 
 

S Couper 
388103 

7. WORKPLAN STUDIES  (Pages 57 - 64) 
 

 

 To consider with the aid of a report by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services the Panel’s programme of studies. 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 



 
 

8. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (ECONOMIC WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS  (Pages 65 - 68) 

 
 

 To consider a report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

9. SCRUTINY  (Pages 69 - 74) 
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions taken since the last meeting as set out in the 
Decision Digest and to raise any other matters for scrutiny that fall 
within the remit of the Panel. 
 

 

   
 Dated this 31st day of September 

2011 
 

   

  Head of Paid Service 
 

 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 
Please contact Mrs Claire Bulman, Democratic Services Officer, Tel 01480 388234 / 
email Claire.Bulman@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any 
Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would 
like information on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 



 
If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 

or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(ECONOMIC WELL-BEING) held in the CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 
3TN on Thursday, 7 July 2011. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor D M Tysoe – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors G J Bull, E R Butler, S Greenall, 

R Harrison, P G Mitchell, M F Shellens and 
A H Williams. 
 
Mrs H Roberts. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors R B Howe 
and A J Mackender-Lawrence and Mr R Hall 

   
 
 
17. MINUTES   

 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 9th June 2011 were 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

18. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations were received. 
 

19. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - FORWARD PLAN   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the current Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which 
had been prepared by the Executive Leader of the Council for the 
period 1st July to 31st October 2011. Members were advised that 
reports on the Financial Strategy and the options for the Call Centre 
after 2012, would be presented to their next meeting as a matter of 
course. 
 

20. CABINET FEEDBACK - ONE LEISURE FINANCE / USE OF 
CONSULTANTS   

 
 The Panel received and noted a report from the Cabinet (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) outlining their deliberations on 
the Panel’s studies into the financial performance of One Leisure and 
the Council’s use of consultants. The Panel noted that the Executive 
Councillor for Organisational Development had been asked to review 
the Council’s IT costs and that their recommendations would form the 
basis for improvements to the Council’s current arrangements for the 
use of consultants.  
 
With regard to the Panel’s ongoing review of the financial 
performance of One Leisure, Councillor M F Shellens reported that he 
had recently received admission figures for the Council’s Leisure 

Agenda Item 1

1



Centres, which had been produced on a 12 month rolling average and 
that he would make these available for consideration during the 
review. 
 

21. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT  2010/11   
 

 (Councillor T V Rogers, Executive Councillor for Resources and 
Customer Services, was in attendance for this item). 
 
With the assistance of a report by the Head of Financial Services (a 
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel considered 
the Council’s performance for the year ending 31st March 2011 in the 
investment of its reserves. 
 
Having been acquainted with the Council’s Strategies for both 
borrowing and investing funds in the current year, the Panel noted 
that the performance of the funds in a year when rates had remained 
very low had been good, with both the benchmark and the budgeted 
investment interest having been significantly exceeded. 
 
In considering the contents of the report and having been reminded 
that, in December 2008, the Council borrowed £10M in advance of its 
need for the funds over a 50 year period, Members noted that the 
return from the investment of these monies had been greater than the 
cost of the monthly repayments. A Member inquired whether there 
was any scope to lend money to other authorities at a still higher rate; 
however, it was explained that it was unlikely that other authorities 
would pay more than the rates currently asked by the Public Works 
Loan Board. 
 
Members were advised that the Council had needed to borrow on 
average £3M during the year to manage its cash flow. This reflected 
the fact that there were extreme fluctuations during the year, which 
resulted from the fact that the Council collected precepts on behalf of 
other local bodies and also had to pay out the levies to those 
authorities in addition to the payment of salaries and meeting the cost 
of capital expenditure on a monthly basis. 
 
With regard to paragraph 3.1 of the report, Members queried why 
there had been a reduction in the average interest rates that had 
been paid on investments during the year. The Panel was informed 
that this was attributable to the fact that investments, which had been 
made at higher rates in previous years, had matured and only lower 
rates were now available. 
 
The Panel discussed the Authority’s Strategy for long-term borrowing 
and noted that the capital programme for the next 5 years assumed 
an expenditure of approximately £23M plus any slippages from 
individual years. The Head of Financial Services explained that 
provided the Council could demonstrate that it had the capacity to 
afford the repayments, there was no limit to the level of borrowing 
which could be undertaken by an individual Council. Having been 
advised that following the reduction of the Council’s reserves over the 
last few years all investments were now being managed in-house, it 
was 
 
RESOLVED 

2



 
that the Treasury Management Annual Report 2010/11 be 
endorsed for submission to the Cabinet. 

 
22. ELECTRONIC NEWSLETTER FOR RESIDENTS   

 
 (Councillor T V Rogers, Executive Councillor for Resources and 

Customer Services, was in attendance for this item). 
 
The Panel received a joint presentation by the Council’s 
Communications and Partnerships Manager and Senior 
Communications Officer on their proposals for future communications 
with residents in Huntingdonshire. Members were informed that 
following the public consultation on proposed budgetary savings in 
the previous year, a review of communication activities and their 
associated costs had been undertaken.  As a consequence the final 
version of District-Wide, the Council’s magazine had been published 
in May 2011. 
 
The Senior Communications Officer outlined details and objectives of 
a proposal to produce an electronic newsletter on a quarterly basis. It 
was envisaged, assuming there were 5000 subscribers, that this 
would cost the Council £1095 per annum. Having also informed 
Members of the potential to prepare a limited number of printed 
versions twice a year, the Communications and Partnerships 
Manager expressed the view that the latter would not be a good use 
of the budget and other resources.  
 
During discussion on the proposal, Members were advised that it 
would not generate advertising revenue. Councillor P G Mitchell 
queried whether it would be possible to reproduce the electronic 
version within parish magazines. Members agreed that this should be 
incorporated within the proposals. It was also suggested that parish 
council websites might be used to signpost residents to information 
about the District Council. 
 
Councillor T V Rogers, Executive Councillor for Resources and 
Customer Services, drew attention to the forthcoming launch of the 
My Huntingdonshire website, which would provide a variety of 
information about the District. With this in mind, the Panel queried 
whether an electronic newsletter was necessary and suggested that, 
before a decision was taken to proceed, the Council should determine 
whether it was necessary to disseminate the information it would 
contain. In response the Panel was informed of the nature of the 
information which would be included within the newsletter and 
reminded that it was intended to review the proposal after 12 months. 
The review would have regard to the development of the My 
Huntingdonshire website. 
 
The Panel discussed whether the use of e-communication would put 
an sections of society at a disadvantage. The Communications and 
Partnership Manager informed Members that data obtained in 2008 
indicated that 30% of residents did not have access to email. In 
addition, following discussions with disadvantaged groups and the 
publication of articles in District-Wide, only one letter had been 
received in support of the retention of District-Wide. By comparison, 
there had been 700 requests to register an interest in receiving 

3



Council information via the website. 
 
Councillor G Bull enquired whether it would be possible to analyse 
subscribers to ensure that information was reaching more vulnerable 
groups. The Panel was advised that the newsletter would only be 
received by those who requested it; however, it would be possible to 
monitor use of the Council’s website and the pages visited. 
 
With regard to the production of a supplementary printed version of 
the newsletter twice per year, Members were generally of the opinion 
that this was unnecessary given the limited numbers it was intended 
to produce and the Communications and Partnerships Manager’s 
view that this would not be a good use of Council resources.  
 
In considering the use of an externally managed database to store the 
email addresses of residents who had registered their interest in 
receiving Council information, Members queried what implications this 
might have for data protection and for the Council if data were to go 
missing. They recommended that risk assessments were undertaken 
of the company that would be used and of the Council’s equalities 
obligations. 
 
Subject to the views they had expressed during the debate regarding 
the involvement of parish councils and risk management being taken 
into account, the Panel indicated their support in principle for the 
proposal to produce four electronic newsletters per annum over a 12 
month trial period. 
 
(Councillor M F Shellens indicated that he would not be voting on this 
matter). 
 

23. CUSTOMER SERVICES QUARTERLY REPORT   
 

 (Councillor T V Rogers, Executive Councillor for Resources and 
Customer Services, was in attendance for this item). 
 
The Panel gave consideration to the Customer Service Quarterly 
Performance Report for the period January to March 2011 (a copy of 
which is appended in the Minute Book) which outlined the levels of 
performance and standards achieved by the Service. Attention was 
drawn to the significant issues, which had emerged since the last 
report and the issues that the service would face in the forthcoming 
quarter. Members were advised that changes to the opening hours at 
the Ramsey and Yaxley Customer Service Centres had not yet come 
into effect and, therefore, it would not be possible to review the impact 
of these changes until June 2012. 
 
In considering the contents of the report, the Panel noted that 
satisfaction levels continued to be maintained despite a reduction in 
staffing levels. In response to a question about queue performance in 
2010/11 and the measures which had been taken to reduce waiting 
times, Members were advised that it was difficult to predict average 
queue times and that it was necessary to be flexible to respond to 
demand as it arose. A Member suggested that it might be useful for 
future reports to be reorganised such that those services with the 
most enquiries were featured at the top of the charts.  
 

4



Arising from the report, the Panel queried whether any consideration 
had been given to providing services for other authorities. In 
response, the Executive Councillor for Resources Customer Services 
explained that he would shortly be examining the options available for 
the Call Centre when the existing IT and premises contracts expired 
in December 2012. A report on progress would be submitted to a 
future meeting. 
 
The Panel discussed the high number of benefit enquiries that were 
still being received as a result of the current state of the economy. 
Members were advised that the Council currently was receiving a 
subsidy from the Department for Work and Pensions to help deal with 
the increased workload; however, it was uncertain whether this 
funding would continue after April 2012. 
 
In response to a query regarding the opening hours of the Yaxley 
Customer Services Centre and whether they could be linked to the 
weekly bus service from the surrounding villages, the Head of 
Customer Services reported that she had sought local views on the 
matter and that she would give it consideration. 
 
Other matters which were discussed included the Call Centre’s 
business continuity arrangements and the flexibility of the staff 
arrangements within the service to respond to increased demand in a 
particular area. It was suggested that it might be useful to display 
information to customers about those times during which there was a 
high demand for the service. Having endorsed the format of the report 
and the proposal to report back in June 2012 on the effect of the 
changes at the Ramsey and Yaxley Centres, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the contents of the report be noted; and. 
 

(b) the Executive Councillor for Resources and Customer 
Services be requested to give further consideration to the 
actions which could be taken should additional funding from 
the Department for Work and Pensions to deal with benefits 
enquiries not continue after April 2012. 

 
24. ONE LEISURE FINANCE   

 
 With the assistance of a report by the One Leisure Finance Working 

Group (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel 
received an update on the deliberations of the Working Group, which 
had been established to review the performance of One Leisure and 
make recommendations on the service’s future strategic direction. 
 

25. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT  2010/11   
 

 The Panel received and noted the draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report for 2010/11 (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book). 
 

26. WORKPLAN STUDIES   
 

 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Democratic 
and Central Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 

5



Book) containing details of studies that were being undertaken by the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels. In so doing, comment was 
made about the study of CCTV provision and the need to give 
consideration to the future of the service at the earliest opportunity. 
The Scrutiny and Review Manager explained that the matter would be 
considered by the Panel for Environmental Well-Being at their 
meeting the following week and all members were welcome to attend. 
He undertook to circulate a copy of the relevant report. 
 
In considering potential areas for future investigation, during 
discussion on the viability of the A14 it was suggested that a 
representative of the Highways Agency should be invited to a future 
meeting to discuss the Agency’s contingency arrangements should it 
not be possible to use the A14 for an extended period of time. Having 
regard to Members’ interest in the Council’s support services, a 
scoping report on this subject was requested for consideration at a 
future meeting. Reports also were requested on the likely impact on 
the Council of the Government’s Statement on Business Rates and 
on the implications for the local economy of the establishment of a 
Local Enterprise Zone on the former Alconbury Airfield. 
 

27. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL (ECONOMIC WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS   

 
 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) reviewing progress on matters that had previously been 
discussed by the Panel. 
 

28. SCRUTINY   
 

 The Panel received and noted the latest edition of the Council’s 
Decision Digest (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book). 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

6



 

 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

Prepared by Councillor J D Ablewhite Miss Effe Chrisostomou 
Date of Publication: 11 August 2011 
For Period: 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2011 
 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor J D Ablewhite  - Leader of the Council, with responsibility for 
  Strategic Economic Development 

3 Pettis Road 
St. Ives 
Huntingdon   PE27 6SR 
 
Tel:  01480 466941          E-mail:  Jason.Ablewhite@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor N J Guyatt  - Deputy Leader of the Council with responsibility for  
  Strategic Planning and Housing 

6 Church Lane 
Stibbington 
Cambs           PE8 6LP 
 
Tel:  01780 782827        E-mail:  Nick.Guyatt@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor B S Chapman - Executive Councillor for Organisational  
  Development 

6 Kipling Place 
St. Neots 
Huntingdon   PE19 7RG 
 
Tel:  01480 212540        E-mail:  Barry.Chapman@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

Councillor J A Gray   - Executive Councillor for Environment Shufflewick Cottage 
Station Row 
Tilbrook        PE28 OJY 
 
Tel:  01480 861941             E-mail: JG@novae.com 

 

Councillor T V Rogers - Executive Councillor for Resources and Customer 
  Services 

Honeysuckle Cottage 
34 Meadow Lane 
Earith 
Huntingdon   PE28 3QE   
 
Tel:  01487 840477 E-mail: Terence.Rogers@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor T D Sanderson  - Executive Councillor for Healthy and Active 
  Communities 

29 Burmoor Close 
Stukeley Meadows 
Huntingdon   PE29 6GE  
 
Tel:  (01480) 412135 E-mail: to(M)Sanderson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

 

A
genda Item

 3

7



Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made may do so by contacting Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 
01480 388008 or E-mail:   Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  not less than 14 days prior to the date when the decision is to be made. 
 

The documents available may be obtained by contacting the relevant officer shown in this plan who will be responsible for preparing the final report to be submitted to the decision maker on the 
matter in relation to which the decision is to be made.  Similarly any enquiries as to the subject or matter to be tabled for decision or on the availability of supporting information or documentation 
should be directed to the relevant officer. 
 

Roy Reeves 
Head of Administration 
 
Notes:- (i) Additions/significant changes from the previous Forward are annotated *** 
 (ii) For information about how representations about the above decisions may be made please see the Council’s Petitions Procedure at 

http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/3F6CFE28-C5F0-4BA0-9BF2-76EBAE06C89D/0/Petitionsleaflet.pdf or telephone 01480 388006 
 

 
Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Waste Collection 
Policies*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Eric Kendall, Head of Operations Tel No. 
01480 388635 or email 
Eric.Kendall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Cambridgeshire 
Future Transport - 
Transport for 
Cambridgeshire*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Update on 
emerging options 
and 
recommendations.  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Nuisance Vehicles 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Sonia  Hansen, Development and 
Community Manager Tel No. 01480 388630 
or email 
Sonia.Hansen@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

8



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Call Centre Post 2012 
- Infrastructure, 
Scope, Partnering 
Arrangements and 
Location 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Hall, Head of Information Management 
Division Tel No. 01480 388116 or email 
Chris.Hall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being  

 
T V Rogers 
B Chapman 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Cambridgeshire 
Green Infrastructure 
Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
Cambs County 
Council-Led Project 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388340 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
Policy (subject to 
County Council 
progress).  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Residential Travel 
Plan 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
Cambs County 
Council-Led Project 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388340 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
Policy (subject to 
County Council 
progress).  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Financial Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
22 Sep 2011 
 

 
Previous Year's 
Budget Report - 
Various Annexes 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel. 01480 388103 or email 
Steve.Couper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny (Economic 
Well-being) – 8th 
September 2011  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
(Economic Well-
being) 
 

 
Cambridgeshire 
Public Sector Asset 
Management 
Strategy*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Malcolm Sharp, Director of Environmental 
and Community Services Tel No. 01480 
388300 or email 
Malcolm.Sharp@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Green House Project 
Update*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Jablonski, Environment Team Leader 
Tel No. 01480 388368 or email 
Chris.Jablonski@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

9



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Great Fen 
Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
Great Fen SPD 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388340 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy (further 
details required)  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
St. Ives West Urban 
Design Framework 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
Agreed Urban Design 
Framework 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Adopt as Council 
policy  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Gypsy & Traveller 
Policy Issues 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
New PPS on G & T 
Issues Cambs 
GTANA 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Consider latest 
policy issues.  

 
N J guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Developer 
Contributions 
Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Oct 2011 
 

 
Local Infrastructure 
Framework 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy.  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Carbon Management 
Update*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Nov 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Jablonski, Environment Team Leader 
Tel No. 01480 388368 or email 
Chris.Jablonski@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Planning for 
Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (SuDs) 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Nov 2011 
 

 
CCC SuDs Options 
Paper 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Consider options.  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

10



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Planning Proposals 
Development Plan 
Document 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Nov 2011 
 

 
Updated SHLAA, 
Employment Land 
Review, Updated 
Retail Study 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve findings for 
consultations as 
preferred options.  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
RAF Brampton Urban 
Design Framework 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Nov 2011 
 

 
Agreed Urban Design 
Framework 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Adopt as Council 
Policy.  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Draft MTP*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
8 Dec 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or email 
Steve.Couper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 - 
Publication of Rural 
Settlement List*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
8 Dec 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
J Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel No. 
01480 388015 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 

11



12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



COMT  31 AUGUST, 2011 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (Economic Well Being) 8 SEPTEMBER, 2011 
CABINET 22 SEPTEMBER, 2011 
 

Page 1 of 14 
Version 2.2 

 

CALL CENTRE OPTIONS BEYOND 2012 
 (Report by the Head of Information Management) 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this report is to present recommendations regarding the 
options for the Call Centre beyond December 2012 for consideration by 
Cabinet on September 22nd, 2011.   

 
2. INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1. The main IT contracts for the Call Centre end in December 2012, the 

Speke House lease runs until June 2013. The Council has been looking at 
what is required to deal with this issue. 
 

2.2. The Council set up the current Call Centre operation in 2005.  The service 
is managed and staffed entirely by HDC personnel but the 
accommodation, core IT and telephony infrastructure is provided by 
Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC).   
 

2.3. The Customer Relationship Management System (CRM) is Onyx One 
Serve – This system is used to record the details of customer contacts 
(via phone, web and eforms), maintaining customer records and history.  
The system is used to record and generate Service Requests for the back 
office to action as well as providing various management reports.   
 

2.4. The telephony system is Avaya which is an Automated Call Distribution 
(ACD) system.  This system provides all of the intelligent and automated 
routing, queuing, call recording, messaging and reporting functionality.  
The Council pay CCC a managed service and support fee for the current 
infrastructure.   
 

2.5. The Call Centre occupies leased accommodation in Speke House (A CCC 
owned building that also houses their call centre, Cambs Direct) in St 
Ives.   
 

2.6. A project to formally evaluate the Council’s future options for the Call 
Centre was initiated in February 2011.  The Project Board is chaired by 
Chris Hall, Head of IMD with Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services 
also a member.  

 
3. OBJECTIVES 
 
3.1. The primary objectives of the project are : 

 
a. To evaluate the main options for HDC’s Call Centre to enable decisions 

to be taken in advance of the expiry of the current contracts with CCC 
(Dec 2012 and June 2013). 

Agenda Item 4

13



 

Page 2 of 14 
Version 2.2 

b. To consider the options on the basis of maintaining or improving high 
levels of service against overall value. 

c. Identify opportunities to find savings and reduce cost.   
d. To explore the benefits of sharing elements of the service provision and / 

or collaboration with existing and / or new LA partners. 
 

These objectives have been applied to some specific areas:  
 

i. Reviewing Technology (CRM and Telephony) 
ii. Call Centre Location 
iii. Staff options 
iv. Reviewing CCC’s service offer   

 

14



 

Page 3 of 14 
Version 2.2 

4. OPTIONS 
 

The table below highlights the main options that exist for the Call Centre and whether they have been evaluated (denoted by the 
ticks and crosses) and the reasoning:  
 
  Share with CCC HDC Provided Share with FDC / SCDC Cambs Direct (CCC) 
Staff  Option N/A - CCC has its own 

Call Centre - Cambs Direct.  
Only viable option to 
collaborate on staff is 
outsourcing to Cambs Direct 

 Existing position - All Call 
Centre staff employed directly 
by HDC 

 Option not currently 
considered - SCDC part of 
Cambs Direct and FDC have 
no known intention to share 

Telephony  Existing position - HDC use 
CCC's Avaya ACD system 

 Option evaluated - HDC could 
move to providing its own 
ACD system. 

 Option not currently 
considered - Most viable 
options are either sharing with 
CCC as current or HDC only. 

CRM  Existing position - HDC use 
CCC's Onyx CRM system 

 Option evaluated - HDC could 
have its own CRM system. 

 Option being considered - 
HDC could share 
procurement and / or a 
system with FDC / SCDC.  
More detail required to fully 
evaluate 

Location  Existing position - HDC lease 
space in Speke House 

 Option evaluated - HDC could 
potentially move to HDC 
accommodation at PFH / 
EFH. 

 Option not currently 
considered – SCDC decision 
to set up its own operation at 
Cambourne post Dec 2012.  
FDC has no known plans to 
move from its current 
approach. 

 Option evaluated - 
Indicative figures received 
for Cambs Direct to offer the 
service. If moving to Cambs 
Direct the whole service 
would be outsourced 

 
 

15



 

Page 4 of 14 
Version 2.2 

5. KEY FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS  
 

The table below summarises the key conclusions for the different options that have been evaluated those that are not in scope are 
greyed out.  More explanation and detail is provided from 5.1 onwards. 
  Share with CCC HDC Share with FDC / SCDC Cambs Direct (CCC) 
Staff  N/A - Not considered a viable option.  

CCC has a much bigger operation 
with Cambs Direct and we provide 
different services. 

 HDC has an excellent Call 
Centre and should retain its 
own staff. 

? See section 5.4 for more 
detail.  The potential for 
efficiencies and 
improvements through the co-
location of staff is limited.  
The resourcing of the CSC 
and the Call Centre can be 
considered separately to 
decisions regarding contracts 
with CCC.    

 N/A - Option not currently 
considered - SCDC part of 
Cambs Direct and planning 
to set up its own operation. 
FDC have no known 
intention to share. 

Telephony  HDC currently uses CCC’s Avaya 
ACD (Automated Call Distribution) 
telephony system and is very 
satisfied with it.  The Avaya system 
is a “best in class” solution and the 
charge from CCC is considered to 
be good value (largely driven by 
CCC’s economies of scale). 

 Due to CPSN data link HDC should 
be able to utilise the system 
regardless of location 

 To procure and implement an 
HDC system will be costly ( 
Capital of £40k+ ), incur risk 
and is unlikely to provide the 
call centre with a system that 
is either as good or cheaper 
than CCC’s Avaya. 

 N/A – Option not 
considered viable. 

CRM See section 5.6 for details.  In summary: 
 The current system (Onyx) has 

worked satisfactorily for the Call 
Centre.  

 See section 5.6 for details.  In 
summary: 
 The business case to move 

to a new HDC CRM is 

 See section 5.6 for details.  In 
summary: 
 SCDC have decided to end 
their agreement with 

 Outsourcing to Cambs Direct may 
provide savings however 
confidence is low in the indicative 
costs provided by CCC. 

 Outsourcing to Cambs Direct could 
mean risking the current levels of 
excellent service passing control to 
CCC.  

 SCDC have decided to pull out of 
Cambs Direct to set up its own 
operation - This must attach 
severe risk to any move for HDC 
to go this way.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



 

Page 5 of 14 
Version 2.2 

  Share with CCC HDC Share with FDC / SCDC Cambs Direct (CCC) 
 CCC have indicated the running 

costs are likely to reduce. 
 

 There are issues with the current 
model of sharing Onyx with CCC 
(Integration, constraints on 
configuration, not really used outside 
of the Call Centre). 

 The revenue costs are considered 
high (£87k pa currently and £56k pa 
indicative in the future).  

 CCC have no firm plans to review / 
replace Onyx although it is inevitable 
they will have to do this at some 
point. 

 There are now better products 
available which could provide 
greater value to HDC as a whole.  

positive with an estimated 
£50k saving per year. 

 There are now better 
products available which 
could provide greater value 
to HDC as a whole. 

 Constraints imposed by the 
current arrangements with 
CCC would be removed.  

 Any procurement and 
implementation project will 
carry complexity and risk. 

Cambs Direct with CCC 
and set up their own Call 
Centre.  Indications are 
that collaboration on 
procurement and/or 
sharing a system is 
possible. 

 FDC are also reviewing its 
CRM options.  The option 
to collaborate is possible. 

 The requirements and 
timescales of SCDC and / 
or FDC may not link to 
HDC’s. 

 The business case for 
sharing systems is not yet 
clear.  HDC has already 
encountered some issues 
sharing with CCC. 

 Working with partners can 
bring additional complexity, 
effort and risk.   

 
Location  Speke House provides good 

accommodation and facilities at a 
competitive rate. 

 Speke House provides additional 
disaster recovery resilience and 
contingency. 

 CCC have indicated options for 
continued use beyond June 2013 will 
be available. 

 Option to stay at Speke for further 5 

 
 The most appropriate HDC 

location to accommodate the 
Call Centre is EFH. 

 Moving the Call Centre to 
PFH may provide some 
additional but limited scope to 
get efficiencies from the co-
location of Call Centre and 
CSC staff.  

 N/A - Option not currently 
considered – SCDC 
decision to set up its own 
operation at Cambourne 
post  Dec 2012.  FDC has 
no known plans to move 
from its current approach. 

 

17



 

Page 6 of 14 
Version 2.2 

  Share with CCC HDC Share with FDC / SCDC Cambs Direct (CCC) 
years will be at worst same cost as 
option to move to HDC with lower 
risks. 

 Although not considered a viable 
strategy the dynamic interchanging 
of CSC and Call Centre staff would 
not be possible. 

 Moving the Call Centre to 
PFH / EFH could risk sub-let 
income of £30k to £50k. 

 Moving the Call Centre to an 
HDC location will incur cost, 
complexity and risk.  Staff 
turnover is likely to increase 
significantly in the short term. 

? Further clarity will be needed 
around the impact of the 
County wide MAC (Making 
Assets Count) project 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

Page 7 of 14 
Version 2.2 

The following lists in more detail the key findings and conclusions from the 
work to date by category: 
 
5.1. Service 

 
The HDC Call Centre continues to provide an excellent service (as 
endorsed by the Government’s Customer Service Excellence Award and 
feedback from customers) and the Council retains a high degree of control 
over service delivery through the current model.  Any future changes to 
the Call Centre should take into consideration the success and efficiency 
of the current operation against the need to generate savings. 

 
5.2. Costs / Savings 
 
a. From the details established to date there is a high likelihood that savings 

against the Call Centre’s current revenue costs will be achievable. 
Indicative savings are estimated in the range of £30k pa to £50k+pa.  
The savings potential is driven by CCC’s own plans to reduce costs (from 
changes to current supplier contracts and staffing) and the option for HDC 
to provide its own CRM (reducing the reliance on CCC to provide support 
services and levy a managed service fee).   

b. Indicative costs from CCC suggest that moving the provision of our Call 
Centre services to Cambs Direct (and no longer having HDC staff deliver 
the service) could extend the savings further.  However the accuracy of 
these indicative costs is not considered to be high (CCC acknowledge this 
as more detail is required).   In light of points 5.1 and 5.7 this option has to 
be considered a high risk and not a preferred option.   

 
5.3. Location 
 
a. The Council’s Estates Manager has advised that the current terms of 

HDC’s lease for Speke House are highly competitive.  HDC currently pay 
£20k pa for rental and approx £20k for services (utilities, parking etc.)   

b. CCC has indicated space at Speke House will remain available to HDC 
beyond the current lease and they are willing to discuss both an extension 
and changes to the current arrangements (CCC has indicated that the 
terms of our current lease are unlikely to alter significantly). 

c. Moving the Call Centre to HDC accommodation in Huntingdon will incur 
elements of cost, complexity and risk.  The main components being: 
 

� Telephony - The need to retain or replace CCC’s ACD system.  
� Staff - Implications for the retention of staff (especially part time staff who 

live in St Ives) and service disruption.  The indications are that 20% to 
25% of the Call Centre’s current team may choose to leave rather than 
commute.    

� DR - Reduction in Disaster Recovery options (Speke House has back up 
generators and gives greater resilience through multiple town locations). 

� Risk - The overall resources, costs and risks associated with undertaking 
the project required to deliver the move. 

19



 

Page 8 of 14 
Version 2.2 

� Sub-let - The opportunity cost of reducing the sub-let potential of HDC 
space (Work by the Facilities Team has indicated that office space above 
the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House (PFH) has a sub let value of £30k pa to 
£50k pa). 

d. The Facilities team believe Eastfield House (EFH) would be the most 
appropriate HDC location for the Call Centre if it were to move, however 
subletting space at PFH and other plans could mean there is no suitable 
space at EFH. Further clarity will be needed around the impact of the 
County wide MAC (Making Assets Count) project, the approach to use of 
HDC owned space versus income opportunities and the future shape of 
the organisation.  

e. A table in Appendix 2 summarises the estimated net costs of the main 
options.  When all of the factors are taken into account the 5 year costs  
and risks make remaining at Speke House the preferable option.  
 

5.4. Customer Service Staff Resource Models 
 
There is a view that co-locating the Call Centre with our Customer Service 
Centre will generate management / staff efficiencies.  Some Authorities do 
operate in this way (and many others have multiple sites including 
dedicated Call Centres) however the following should be noted: 

a. A change in approach to management within Customer Services is not 
considered to be exclusive to the Call Centre and Customer Service 
Centre being co-located.  Speke House is only 5/6 miles from PFH and 
EFH (Considered as the best HDC alternative to Speke) is 2 miles from 
PFH. 

b. Through accurately forecasting calls, good staff planning and using part 
time staff the Call Centre is already efficient with little spare capacity.  In 
addition the current make up of skills sets, preferences and training / 
knowledge is not uniform across the Call Centre and CSC staff.  The 
opportunity to create efficiencies through interchanging staff dynamically 
on the same site is therefore considered limited.   

c. The opportunity for greater cross training / movement of staff between the 
channels could still be beneficial, (As recently demonstrated for maternity 
cover).  Practice from elsewhere (for example East Riding) does suggest 
the option to use face to face staff as an additional (but planned) resource 
for taking calls could be explored and has no dependency on co-location.  

d. Changes to the approach for staffing and managing both face to face and 
phone contacts are not dependent upon the co-location of these services.  
It is not constrained by the contracts and timescales for agreements with 
CCC.  

   
5.5. Technology - Telephony 

 
a. The HDC Call Centre currently uses CCC’s Avaya ACD (Automated Call 

Distribution) telephony system and is very satisfied with it.  The Avaya 
system is a “best in class” solution and the charge from CCC is 
considered to be good value (largely driven by CCC’s economies of 
scale).   

20



 

Page 9 of 14 
Version 2.2 

b. Moving away from this system to procure and implement an HDC system 
will be costly ( Capital of £40k+ ), incur risk and is unlikely to provide the 
call centre with a system that is either as good or cheaper than CCC’s 
Avaya.   

c. The agreement for this should be extended in line with the term for Speke 
House. Approval should be given to the Project Team (supported by Legal 
/ Estates and Facilities as required), to initiate negotiations with CCC. 

 
5.6. Technology - CRM 
 
a. Surprisingly CCC has no plans to review the CRM market place and is 

committed to retaining the Onyx system with a planned upgrade to version 
7.1 during 2011/12.  To date CCC and therefore also HDC have only 
limited information about the features and any benefits of the new version.  
While there are no confirmed plans it does seem inevitable that CCC will 
have to review their options at some point in the future.  Recently (Aug 
2011) contact from CCC has indicated their position maybe subject to 
change – although HDC has no official confirmation of this.   

b. HDC’s use of the CCC hosted Onyx system has been a mainly 
satisfactory arrangement for the last 6 years and supports the Call Centre 
functionally.  However there are a number of issues: 

� Integration with other HDC systems and datasets – Through a 
combination of Onyx residing on CCC’s network and the Onyx 
architecture this has proved to be an area that is both costly and difficult 
to achieve.  In addition gaining full access directly to HDC systems has 
also proved difficult.  

� Configuration and changes to the system are wholly controlled by CCC.  
While HDC pay for CCC to undertake this on our behalf, the constraints 
that exist and overall value is open to question.  CCC has indicated these 
costs are likely to reduce (From £87k pa to £56k pa). 

� Our LLPG interface to Onyx for daily property record updates has recently 
ceased with no firm plans to rectify this (an area of investment in the 
past).  This is due to a change in LLPG file format which CCC / Consona 
(Onyx vendor) do not view as a priority. 

� The revenue costs of £87k pa are considered high - they include a 
managed service fee as well as funding for a post in CCC’s Business 
Support Team. 

� It is used very little by Services and other customer service channels 
(Face to face, no web or self service options).  

� Reporting and access to HDC data in the CRM.  The current 
arrangements could be significantly improved.   

c. The conclusions of the evaluation of the CRM market place for local 
government undertaken with South Cambs District Council (SCDC) and 
Fenland District Council (FDC) are listed below: 

� There are significantly better products than the current version of Onyx we 
are using.  The current system is used nearly exclusively by the Call 
Centre, it is believed an alternative CRM from the review could be utilised 
far more corporately (inc other customer service channels) and would 
provide a better strategic fit for HDC’s IT infrastructure and resources.   

21



 

Page 10 of 14 
Version 2.2 

� This combined with bringing the CRM under greater HDC control (i.e. no 
longer taking the service from CCC), could also result in a more agile, 
easier integrated and better utilised system.   

� The future estimated costs of the options based upon indicative costs 
from CRM vendors and CCC are summarised below (A more detailed 
breakdown is provided in Appendix 1).  The estimated return on 
investment from switching systems and the potential for ongoing revenue 
savings presents a sound business case.  An MTP proposal has been 
drafted on this basis and is included in Appendix 3.  This shows an annual 
saving of - £50k pa. 

 
Option Cap (£k) Rev (£k pa) Total 5 years 

(£k) 
Future 
Revenue 

Saving £k pa 
Current Costs for CCC 
Onyx 0 87 435 0 

Future Costs for CCC 
Onyx 0 56 280 -30 

Preferred CRM option from 
Market Review 156 16 236 -71 

 
d. After working together with FDC and SCDC to review the CRM market 

place, all three Councils (on the basis of those representing them) believe 
there is some potential to explore further whether or not the options of 
joint procurement, or some degree of sharing a CRM system are mutually 
beneficial. 

e. PC hardware, support and data connectivity at Speke House – At the 
moment the PCs and direct support for them is provided by CCC (£9k pa).  
There is a data link to HDC which gives limited access to HDC’s network 
and systems.  Data connectivity options between HDC and CCC locations 
will be improved by the introduction of CPSN1 during 2012.  The option to 
retain the current arrangements or replace the PC hardware (and support) 
and bring them directly onto the HDC network requires further 
investigation.  

f. As part of any future procurement the various routes / options will need to 
be evaluated alongside discussions with partners.  The overall timescales 
and associated risks will need to be considered.  The option to retain the 
use of CCC’s CRM would remain open until that process has concluded.   
 

5.7. Developments at South Cambs District Council 
 
a. SCDC’s Cabinet have approved (July 2011) that they end their current 

arrangements with Cambs Direct and set up their own contact centre (at 
the end of their contract in Dec 2012).  It is not known exactly what the full 
implications of this will be for CCC and if there will be any consequently, 
for HDC – but if CCC are losing a client, there may be a risk this loss of 
income will be passed onto HDC. 

                                                 
1 (CPSN –A County wide data and communications network linking public sector buildings, offices, 
schools etc) 
 

22



 

Page 11 of 14 
Version 2.2 

 
6. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Cabinet are asked to approve the following recommendations: 

 
6.1. Staff 
 
a. The Council should retain an HDC operated and staffed Call Centre 

beyond Dec 2012. 
 

6.2. Location  
 

a. Approval is given to the Project Team (supported by Legal / Estates and 
Facilities as required), to initiate negotiations with CCC regarding a 3 year 
extension to the lease of space / facilities at Speke House.  This process 
should be planned to conclude no later than June 2012.  

 
6.3. CRM Technology 

 
a. The Project Team commence a formal procurement process for a 

replacement CRM system.  The timescale for the completion of this 
process is estimated as January 2012. 

b. The Project Team continue discussions with SCDC and FDC regarding 
any possible collaboration on procurement or sharing of technology (To 
be considered with recommendation 6.3 a).  

c. The Project Team continue to communicate and monitor CCC’s position 
prior to any final decision. 

d. On the basis that the cost of the future CRM system is anticipated to be at 
worst cost neutral (and more likely will generate a saving), Cabinet is 
requested to delegate the final decision on future CRM options to COMT 
and the Executive Councillor for Customer Services. 

 
6.4. Telephony System  

 
a. It is recommended that the Call Centre retains and extends agreements 

for the use of CCC’s Avaya ACD system.   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND CONTACTS 
 
Matt Hinton – Team Leader, BA and Projects Team, IMD, � Ext 8196 
Chris Hall – Head of IMD, � Ext 8116 
Julia Barber – Head of Customer Services, � Ext 8105 
 
 
 

23



 

Page 12 of 14 
Version 2.2 

APPENDIX 1 - CRM INDICATIVE PRICE COMPARISON - SOFT MARKET REVIEW MAY / JUNE 2011, HDC / FDC / SCDC 
  Option 1 £k Option 2 £k Option 3 £k Option 4 £k Future CCC Onyx v72 £k Current CCC Onyx £k 
Front Office Licensing - 50 license 28.5 54 36 25 0 0 
Back Office - 35 licenses 13 4 0 0 0 0 
Licensing Sub Total 41.5 58 36 25     
Mail / SMS 4 13 0 10 0 0 
Web 2.5 30 n/a 5.4 na na 
Integration - Typical per system 4 5   3     
Scripting tool 0 33 0 0 0 0 
Campaigns 0 n/a n/a 3.5 na na 
Reporting 0 25 0 5 0 0 
Total software and modules 52 164 36 52 0  0 
Estimated HDC Network Costs etc 10 10 10 10 0 0 
Estimated HDC  Resource Costs 20 20 20 20 0 0 
Total HDC - £k 30 30 30 30 0 0 
Training 8 45 0 0 0 0 
Implementation Services 66  60 7 33 0 0 
Services Sub Total 74 105 7 33 0 0 
TOTAL -  IMPLEMENTATION (less support) 156 299 73 115 0 0 
Direct Support  - revenue £k pa 12 38 12 10.5 56 87 
Additional HDC Support - revenue £k pa 4 4 4 4 0 0 
                                                 

2 2 While no cost has been included we are awaiting a response from CCC ref the future IT network hardware refresh costs for our continuing use of Onyx.  It is quite likely HDC will need to 
contribute financially to this if extending the current arrangements. 

 

24



 

Page 13 of 14 
Version 2.2 

TOTAL - 5 years  (Implementation + support 5 yrs) 236 508 153 187 280 435 
APPENDIX 2 CALL CENTRE LOCATION OPTIONS – INDICATIVE COSTS 
 

 REVENUE COSTS CAPITAL COSTS   

OPTION SPACE 
£k pa (2) 

TELEPHONY 
SYSTEM   REV 

£k pa 
TELEPHONY  - 

CAP £k 

ADDITIONAL 
STAFF 

RECRUITMENT 
£k(RESULT OF 
INCREASED 
TURNOVER) 

MOVE / 
ASSEMBLE 
FURNITURE 

£k (1) 

TRAINING 
ROOM 

FACILITIES 
£k(Access to 
dedicated 

ACD, 
handsets and 

PCs) 

ADDITIONAL 
SPACE 

MODIFICATIONS £k 

NETWORK 
SET UP  / 

CONFIG ETC 
£k (4) 

 HDC 
PROJECT 
MGT / 

SERVICES 
£k 

NET £k 
(5 

years) 
RISK 
(0 to 
5) 

SPEKE HOUSE 
- EXISTING 
TELEPHONY 40 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 240 1 
HDC PFH - 
EXISTING 
TELEPHONY 
(3) 30 11 17 8 7 6 Cost tbc Cost tbc 6 249 4 
HDC EFH - 
EXISTING 
TELEPHONY 
(3) 30 11 17 8 7 6 Cost tbc Cost tbc 6 249 3 
HDC PFH - 
NEW HDC 
TELEPHONY 30 8 36 8 7 6 Cost tbc Cost tbc 12 259 5 
HDC EFH - 
NEW HDC 
TELEPHONY 30 8 36 8 7 6 Cost tbc Cost tbc 12 259 4 
   
1 - Estimate validated by Facilities as reasonable, actual cost tbc.  This assumes current call centre furniture can be reused.     
2 - Speke House actual costs (£20K for rental & £20k for services inc access to training facilities and parking spaces) for HDC opportunity cost of lower range sublet value 
estimate used (Advised by Accountancy as most appropriate figure). 
3 - Estimate based upon indicative figures from CCC and assumes data  / network 
connectivity via CPSN link is in place. (CPSN –A County wide data and communications 
network provided by Virgin Media linking public sector buildings, offices, schools etc)       
4 - Note - PC refresh costs / build, assumes cost will be net £0 as if staying or moving will need to be undertaken     

25



 

Page 14 of 14 
Version 2.2 

APPENDIX 3 DRAFT MTP 

 

26



  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(ECONOMIC WELL BEING) 
 

08 SEPTEMBER 2011 

CABINET 22 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET 
(Report by the Head of Housing Services) 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report informs Cabinet that the demand for disabled facilities 

grants (DFGs) will exceed the 2011/12 budget provision.  It explores 
the reasons for this and provides options for dealing with the 
situation. 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Council must award a DFG for work to achieve one or more of a 

set of purposes defined by statute.  DFGs are awarded on the 
recommendation of an occupational therapist (OT) and funds aids 
and adaptations like ramps, stair lifts and level access showers.  
Occasionally the works required are more involved and may result in 
an extension to a property, if this is the best solution. DFGs enable 
elderly and disabled people to live independently and therefore 
contribute towards their quality of life.  The Council must be satisfied 
that a DFG is necessary and appropriate and that to carry it out is 
reasonable and practicable.   The Council is expected and required to 
set a budget that can cope with the likely level of demand placed 
upon it. 

 
2.2 A local authority must inform the applicant in writing of the outcome of 

an application as soon as reasonably practicable and not later than 
six months after the date of the application. 

 
2.3 When demand exceeds available budget authorities are able to defer 

payment of approved cases for up to 12 months but this cannot be 
used to limit demand or reduce expenditure.  When money becomes 
available these approved cases are first in line to be paid followed by 
all the other cases for that financial year.  This approach does not 
solve the problem it merely defers the problem. 

 
3. REASONS FOR INCREASED DEMAND/COST 
 
3.1 The waiting time for OT assessment for HDC residents compared to 

other districts has been longer.  Over the last 3 years the OT service 
has put extra resources into Huntingdonshire.  This has resulted in 
higher referral rates.  The waiting time has been broadly equitable 
with other districts since May 2011. It was anticipated that the volume 
of referrals would reduce once equity had been achieved but this has 
not been the case so far.  The OT service has reported a general 
increase in demand. 

 
Year Number of OT referrals Average per month 

2009-10 347 28.92 
2010-11 404 (+57) 33.67 
2011-12 134 (April to July)                   33.5 

 

Agenda Item 5

27



3.2 There were 135 enquiries outstanding from last year at the end of 
December 2010.  These jobs, because of the lead time to prepare, 
have carried over for funding in the current year. In addition, the 
referrals in the current year from the OT service have, so far, 
continued at the higher rate of the previous year.  

 
3.3 Grants Approved. 
 

Year  Grant Approvals Average number per 
month 

2009-10 188 15.66 
2010-11 320 (+132)            26.66 (+11) 
2011-12   98 (April to 30 August)                   19.6 

 
 

APPROVED GRANTS 
 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

(to 30 August) 
Number    
Adult 167 300   85 
Child   21   20   13 
Total 188 320   98 
    
Total cost £ £ £ 
Adult    790,293 1,507,862 502,321 
Child    231,424    298,982 223,238 
Total 1,021,717 1,806,844 725,559 
Average 
cost 

£ £ £ 
Adult   4,732   5,026   5,910 
Child 11,020 14,949 17,172 
All   5,435   5,646   7,404 

 *Grants approved in the year will not equal spend in year due to 
works/payments overlapping financial years. 

 
3.4 There has been a general increase in the number of referrals 

including higher value works such as conversions and extensions to 
homes (see tables at 3.3 and 3.10).  Some of the approvals last 
year are a cost to this year’s budget. 

 
3.5 The Child OT service has reported that their considerable backlog of 

complex cases has now been addressed due to increased staffing 
resources.  They are now visiting children’s cases within their 18 
week target. 

 
3.6 They have commented that the nature of children’s disability has 

changed over the years, and continues to change.  The advances in 
medical care mean that children are surviving now who would 
have previously died, a portion of these children are surviving with 
very profound and complex disability.   

 
3.7 The OT service has said that it is difficult to predict workflows 

because whilst there is no longer a long waiting list of children 
who have waited up to two years there is an increasing number 
of severely disabled children surviving in to childhood and with a 
more complex pattern of disability.  

 
28



 
 
3.8 An additional influence on increased costs has been the introduction 

of new building regulation since last October which has increased 
the thermal insulation requirements of extensions and conversions.  
Builders have stated that over the last year there has been a 
significant increase in material costs and plumbing materials eg 
copper pipes and fittings etc have doubled in price. 

  
APPROVED WORKS 

EXTENSIONS/CONVERSIONS 
 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

(to 30 August) 
Number    
Adult 3   9    5 
Child 5 10    7 
Total 8 19  12 
    
Total cost    
Adult   71,924 196,654 129,866 
Child 105,565 235,715 168,338 
All 177,489 432,369  298,204 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 23,975 21,850 25,973 
Child 21,113 23,571 24,048 
All 22,186 22,756 24,850 

 
3.9 It is difficult to predict the average cost of child cases because they 

are tailored to the individual’s sometimes complex needs in 
comparison to adult adaptations that in general relate more to 
standard jobs such as access to bathing facilities. 

 
APPROVED OTHER WORKS 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 
(to 30 August) 

Number    
Adult 164 291 88 
Child   16   10   6 
Total 180 301 94 
    
Total cost    
Adult 718,369 1,311,208 372,455 
Child 125,859      63,267   54,900 
All 844,228 1,374,475 427,355 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 4,380 4,506   4,232 
Child 7,866 6,327   9,150 
All 4,690 4,566   4,546 

 
 
 
 
 
 

29



 
 
3.10 There is insufficient budget 2011/12 to progress the following cases.  

Not all of these works are capable of completion during 2011/12. 
  

APPLICATIONS ALREADY RECEIVED   
(AWAITING APPROVAL) 

 Extensions/conversions Other Total 
Number    
Adult 12 75   87 
Child   7 13   20 
Total 19 88 107 
 £ £ £ 
Total cost    
Adult 300,000 537,950    837,950 
Child 170,000   87,500    257,500 
All 470,000 625,450 1,095,450 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 25,000 7,173   9,632 
Child 24,286 6,731 12,875 
All 24,737 7,107 10,237 

 
 
4. FUNDING REQUIREMENT 2011/12 
 
4.1 The funding requirement of demand capable of being 

completed/commenced and requiring payment during 2011/12 is as 
follows: 

 
 Number of 

cases 
2011/12 

Funding Requirement 
£000 

Budget           1,217 
Spend at 24 August  528  
Approved and committed  619  
Sub total  1,147 1,147 
Remaining budget   70 
Applications capable of 
completion (already in the 
system but not approved*) 

 626  

New applications expected 
Sept - December**  (at 20 
approvals per month) 

80 560  

Sub total  1,186 1,186 
Budget shortfall   1,116 

 *Approximate cost - builders quotes not received.  
**applications take approximately 3 months to process so those received 
between January and March will be funded from the following year’s budget. 
The mix between large and small jobs is unknown. It is assumed that there 
will be considerably less extensions/conversions for child cases.  The 
average number of grant approvals has been assumed to be 20 per month.  
An average grant of £7k has been used for estimation purposes.   
 

 
 
 
 

30



5. OPTIONS 
 
5.1 The table below shows the increase in capital investment and 

revenue impact for different service levels that could be provided 
(delays in applicants receiving adaptations to their homes). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
5.2 If the additional budget required is to be delayed by six months this 

could be included as part of an MTP process for additional resources 
for 2012/13. 

 
6. CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 The combination of increased demand/referrals for DFGs and the 

increased cost of DFGs means that 2011/12 budget is insufficient if 
the Council wishes to continue its current approach of dealing with 
DFGs without delay, recognising that any delay in providing DFGs 
would have a detrimental impact on the quality of life of those 
requiring adaptations to their home. 

 
6.2 To maintain the current level of service, an increase of £1.116m 

would be required to the 2011/12 budget.  These Grants are funded 
over 10 years and so the additional revenue cost will be £104k in 
2012/13 but rising to around £134k for the remaining nine years.  This 
would enable the Council to fund the backlog of DFG applications in 
addition to those that will be received during the year until December.  

 
6.3 Investigations are ongoing to establish the likely demand going 

forward.  It is likely that an increased budget provision will be required 
in future years and this will form part of the MTP review in the 
autumn. 

 
6.4 Any delay in approvals is likely to result in complaints and adverse 

media. 
 
6.5 The approval of a supplementary estimate will be a key decision. 
 
7. RECOMMENDATION 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet determine the service standard to be 

provided, by reference to the table at paragraph 5.1, and approve the 
applicable supplementary capital estimate. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services 
  01480 388240 

Extra Cost  
Delay in Completion 

of Adaptation 
 

Months 

Capital 
 

£000 
 

2012/13 
 Revenue Impact 

£000 
0 1,116 104 
3  78 
6  52 

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



 AGENDA ITEM NO. 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (Economic Wellbeing) 
CABINET 

8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
22 SEPTEMBER 2011 

 
FINANCIAL FORECAST 

(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 
 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 This report is the start of the process leading to the formal 

approval of the 2012/13 budget and Medium Term Plan (MTP) 
next February.  It provides Members with an update on : 

 the financial plans approved in February, 
 progress on identifying and delivering savings 
 areas where there are new or continuing uncertainties.  

 
This provides the starting point for the draft budget in December 
which will consider changes to service delivery and Council Tax 
levels. 

 
1.2 It also seeks approval for the basis on which the Minimum 

Revenue will be calculated (see Annex E). 
 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council’s financial plan (approved by Council in February) is 

based on funding a deficit budget from reserves to provide time to 
implement a phased savings plan. The highlighted lines in the 
table below show the savings required and the reliance on 
reserves to enable that phasing. 

 
2.2 The key issues considered in this report are: 

 The impact of the 2010/11 outturn. 
 Progress in delivering the identified savings 

Overall Summary 
Forecast Budget MTP 

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 
£M £M £M £M £M £M 

Net Spending before savings 23.5 25.6 26.4 27.4 28.7 29.5 
Proposed Savings  -0.4 -3.0 -4.3 -5.5 -5.7 -6.6 
Savings still required  0.0 -0.8 -1.0 -1.5 -2.0 
Net Spending after Savings 23.1 22.6 21.3 21.0 21.5 20.9 
Funded by:       
   New Homes Grant  -0.8 -1.5 -2.1 -2.7 -3.4 
   Formula Grant (RSG) -12.9 -10.5 -9.3 -9.2 -8.7 -8.9 
   Special Council Tax Grant  -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.0 
   Council Tax -7.2 -7.5 -7.6 -7.9 -8.1 -8.4 
SHORTFALL Met from Reserves 3.0 3.6 2.7 1.6 1.7 0.3 
Council Tax £124.17 £124.17 £127.27 £130.46 £133.72 £137.06 

       Increase   £0.00 £3.10 £3.18 £3.26 £3.34 
Remaining Reserves EOY 13.0 9.4 6.6 5.0 3.3 3.0 

Agenda Item 6

33



 Updating and where possible assessing the risks identified 
in the report and the new ones that have subsequently 
emerged. 

 Identifying the savings still required 
 Considering future levels of Council Tax increase 

 
 
3 SUMMARY 

 

 
The financial result for 2010/11 was beneficial allowing a 
reduction in the deficit that had to be funded from reserves. 

 
Savings: 

o Good progress has been achieved on many of the 
items with the potential for some to over achieve. 

o Some will not be achieved. 
o Some are still dependent on Member debate and 

confirmation. 
 

The plans that this Council has made and is continuing to 
make for house building are likely to give a major increase in 
New Homes Bonus. 

 
There are many significant uncertainties in Government 
Funding including: 

o Grant levels for 2013/14 
o Localisation of Business Rates 
o Reductions in General Grant to fund New Homes 

Bonus 
o Localisation of Council Tax benefits 
o Changes to the responsibilities for Housing Benefit 

 
There are many other uncertainties including the future 
economic situation and the achievement of some of the 
existing savings proposals. 

 
It therefore appears, at least at this stage of the financial 
cycle, that the Council should target savings within the 
following range: 

 

UNIDENTIFIED 
SAVINGS 

Budget MTP 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Current  plan 0.8 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.0 
      

Proposed Range      

Lower End 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 

Higher End 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0 
 

34



4 2010/11 OUTTURN 
 
4.1 Last year (2010/11) the Council managed to keep its spending £1M 

below forecast due to holding posts vacant wherever possible in 
order to be ready to deliver targeted savings for the current year, 
successful revaluation appeals and other, mainly one–off, savings 
partially offset by lower planning fees. £1.6M was used from the 
Special Reserve to fund redundancies leaving a balance of £0.3M. 
£1.9M was taken from general reserves to fund the spending 
deficit leaving Revenue Reserves (including the £0.6M delayed 
spending reserve) of £14.2M at 1st April 2011.   

 
4.2 Capital expenditure of £7.1M was £0.4M higher than forecast due 

mainly to lower slippage than expected. Due to the mix of assets 
finally funded the Minimum Revenue Provision (statutory 
requirement to provide for repaying debt) will be £64k lower than 
forecast but this may turn out to be off-set by higher figures for 
future years when the detailed review of the capital programme is 
carried out in the autumn. 

 
 
5. SAVINGS 

 
5.1 Annex A shows the list of savings identified last year and the latest 

view on their certainty. 
 
5.2 For the purpose of the initial forecast it is assumed that these 

items will all be achieved, including the “mothballing” of 
CCTV, the increase in car park fees and the reduction in 
grants to the voluntary sector. However two scenarios for 
partial non-achievement are included in Section 10 “risks and 
unknowns” and Annex D. 

 
5.3 It is obviously very important that, where items are not yet definite, 

the necessary decisions are made as soon as possible so that the 
amount that needs to be added to the target for “savings not yet 
identified” can be determined so work can commence to identify 
alternative proposals. 

 
5.4 Annex D considers the impact of some of the savings not being 

achieved and the potential for the target for some items (e.g. pay 
and allowances) being exceeded.  

 
 
6. GOVERNMENT FUNDING 
 
6.1 There are a range of Government Grants that fund part of the 

Council’s expenditure and they include: 
 Council Tax and Housing Benefits Grant (£40.6M) – a 

generally full reimbursement of the sums paid out to 
applicants but with a number of technical complexities. 
 

35



The government has announced its intention to transfer the 
processing of Housing Benefits from Local Authorities to the 
DWP.  This will be a phased transfer of existing cases 
between 2013 and 2017.  No new claims will be taken by 
Authorities from October 2013. 
The fraud function will cease from April 2013 but though the 
Council would need to retain an element of this work it is 
possible that the reduction in the Government admin 
subsidy will not recognise this. The worst case scenario is 
that the funding of the residual team would fall on the 
Council at a cost in the region of £75k per year. 
 
Other potential financial impacts include further 
disproportionate losses in administration subsidy, 
redundancy costs, increased costs of collecting 
overpayment debts and increased fraud between 2013 and 
2017 on existing case load. 
 
The Government have also issued a consultation on the 
Localisation of Council Tax Benefits from April 2012 which 
is designed to “help more people back into work, maintain 
protections for pensioners and save the taxpayer up to 
£480 million a year”. Effectively the Council’s Government 
funding would reduce by £900k per year, from £9M to 
£8.1M, on the basis that the Council would set up its own 
scheme which preserved the benefits levels for certain 
government defined vulnerable groups but significantly 
reduced payments to other applicants as part of the 
Government’s philosophy of encouraging them to return to 
work or better paid work. 
 
If these changes do not succeed, the likelihood is that the 
Council would be unable to collect the £900k of council tax 
previously met from benefits. This would reduce the tax 
base thus sharing the loss over all bodies that levy a 
Council Tax in Huntingdonshire. This Council’s share would 
be 8.4% or £76k. 
 

 Council Tax Reward Grant – a fixed grant of £184k per 
year for 4 years from 2011/12. This is equivalent to 2.5% of 
Council Tax income, to reward any Council, like 
Huntingdonshire, that did not raise their Council Tax this 
year. 

 
 New Homes Reward Grant (£0.8M rising to £5.9M by 

2016/17) – Introduced from this year to reward those 
Councils that achieve Housing Growth by giving a payment 
equivalent to the growth in the taxbase at the national 
average Council Tax for 6 years. The scheme is intended to 
be permanent so the sum will rise as each new year of 
growth is added until year 7 when the first year will drop out 
to be replaced by the figure for year 7. There will be an 

36



added sum of £350 for each of the homes that will be social 
rented. 20% of the sum earned is deducted by the 
Government and paid direct to the County Council.  

 
The New Homes Reward Grant is a very significant grant 
for this Council. The approved plan includes a forecast of 
£4M per year by 2016/17. The Council’s latest planning 
projections for the phasing and scale of housing growth 
suggest this sum could be even higher at £5.9M. Whilst 
approval of the Enterprise Zone will potentially result in 
additional extra housing in the medium term the whole 
profile is dependent upon public demand for the houses. AS 
such, this will be an area for critical review at every stage of 
our future financial planning. 
 
Whilst no allowance is made here for the off-setting 
reductions in national Formula Grant totals that the 
Government has recognised will be required, allowance 
has been made in Section 10 “risks and unknowns” 
and Annex D. 

 

NEW HOMES GRANT 
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 

£M £M £M £M £M £M 
       
Current Approved MTP       
Grant Receivable 0.8 1.5 2.1 2.7 3.4 4.0 
       
This Forecast       
Grant Receivable  0.8 1.7 2.7 3.5 4.7 5.9 
VARIATION ( - = LOSS)  0.2 0.6 0.8 1.3 1.9 

 
 

 Formula Grant (£10.5M falling to £8.6M by 2016/17) – This 
is intended to equalise needs and resources and also fund 
any additional tasks that have been transferred to local 
authorities over time. It uses a very complex formula based 
on regression analysis and can be extremely volatile when 
the formulae are changed. As a result it incorporates a 
damping factor that ensures that any authority that has a 
loss of grant greater than a Government determined 
percentage will have that extra loss protected at the cost of 
those authorities that should have gained. The resulting 
amount is artificially split between “Revenue Support Grant” 
and the redistribution of nationally pooled business rates.  
 

 
The final Formula Grant figure for 2011/12 and the 
indicative figure for 2012/13 includes protection of £1.176M 
and £1.054M respectively due to the true grant figure 
requiring a reduction in excess of the Government limit. All 
things being equal, the protection will be phased out over 
time worsening the position compared to the current plan. 

  

37



FORMULA GRANT 
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 

£M £M £M £M £M £M 
       
Current Approved MTP       
Grant Receivable 10.5 9.3 9.2 8.7 8.9 9.1 
       
This Forecast       
2010/11 True Grant 9.3      
Forecast reduction CSR 2010 %  -12.0% -1.0% -6.0%   
Forecast increase thereafter     +2.5% +2.5% 
Forecast True Grant  8.2 8.2 7.7 7.9 8.1 
Protection 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 
Grant Receivable  10.5 9.3 9.1 8.5 8.5 8.6 

   -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.5 
 
Notes:  

 Formula Grant includes Revenue Support Grant and NNDR which are in 
aggregate distributed in line with the grant formula. 

 % reductions are from the Comprehensive Spending Review 2010. 
 It is assumed that the protection will reduce annually. 
 Excludes any assessment of the reduction in Formula Grant that the 

Government will need to make to fund the shortfall in funding for the 
New Homes Bonus. 

 
6.2 The Government has now commenced consultation on a scheme 

to replace Formula Grant from April 2013 with each authority being 
able to keep a proportion of the Business Rates they collect with 
the starting point linked to the figures used in the 2012/13 Formula 
Grant. Their concept is that this would encourage authorities to 
prioritise economic development because they would be allowed 
to keep a proportion of the growth in Business Rates in their area. 
There are currently a significant number of unknowns including: 

 
 How the 2012/13 Formula Grant will be adjusted for 

inflation, demographic change, new responsibilities, 
planned reduction in local government funding, shortfall on 
New Homes Bonus etc. etc. 

 The proportion of any growth the Council would be allowed 
to keep. 

 Whether it would rise by RPI in line with the increase in 
Business Rates each year. In any year RPI may be above 
or below the actual inflation impacting on local authorities. 

 How any new responsibilities would be funded. 
 How often the system would need to be “re-set” because of 

demographic change and significantly varying levels of 
growth or decline and what the new figures would be based 
on (surely not the existing grant formula). 

 How any growth in enterprise zones would be allocated to 
individual authorities by the LEP. 

 
6.3 A number of papers are expected to be issued during August and 

these may begin to provide some of the answers but in the 
meantime there is clearly a trade off to be considered between 
potential growth in business rates and reductions in the total sums 

38



that the Government intends to allocate to Local Authorities and 
the added diversion of sums to the New Homes Bonus.  

 
 
7.  CAPITAL 
 
7.1 In recent years the Council has maintained a significant capital 

programme. However as a result of the emerging financial 
pressures and the conclusion of the Pathfinder House and Depot 
projects the capital programme is now much diminished.  

 
7.2 In the light of the reduced programme it is proposed to reduce the 

contingency for future years as shown below. The 2016/17 
contingency will be replaced by individual bids when the draft MTP 
is produced in the autumn but for the purpose of the forecast it is 
assumed that it also will be reduced by £1M. 

 

Estimated outturn prices 
 
 
8. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
8.1 At this initial stage of the MTP process further changes to net 

spending are limited in number. They include: 
 

 revisions to interest rates and the amounts that interest is 
earned on due to last year’s outturn and any changes included 
in this report.  

 inflation and interest rate adjustments.  
 latest forecast of the current years outturn 
 a few items significant items that warrant changes at this stage. 

 
8.2 Elsewhere on your agenda is a report relating to likely extra costs 

on Disabled Facilities Grants. This was too late to include in the 
forecast model and so an assumption has been included in the 
“Risks and Unknowns” section. 

 
8.3 Annex B provides further information. 
 
  

Net Capital Programme 11/12 
£000 

12/13 
£000 

13/14 
£000 

14/15 
£000 

15/16 
£000 

16/17 
£000 

17/18 
£000 

18/19 
£000 

19/20 
£000 

Current Approved MTP          
Based on bids 11.9 3.3 3.0 2.4 2.8     
Contingency for future years      4.1 4.1 4.3 4.4 
Proposed Contingency      3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 

39



 
9. INITIAL SAVINGS REQUIREMENT  
          
9.1 The table below is based on: 
 

 the changes already explained (i.e. those where it is deemed 
possible to make a reasonable assessment of the financial 
impact), 

  a 2.5% annual increase in Council Tax from 2012/13 onwards, 
 the full achievement of the identified savings in Annex A  

 
 

SHORTFALL 
Budget MTP 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Net Spending before 
unidentified savings -22.2 -21.7 -22.6 -22.6 -23.2 

Funded by:      
Government  Grants -11.2 -11.9 -12.2 -13.2 -14.5 
Council Tax -7.6 -7.9 -8.1 -8.4 -8.7 
Reserves -3.4 -1.8 -2.2 0.8 0.0 

Unidentified Savings  -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.0 

 
 Further detail and additional years in Annex C 
 
 
10. RISKS AND UNKNOWNS 
 
10.1 However this level does not take account of a significant 

number of items where the impact cannot be reasonably 
forecast and which will have a direct impact on net spending 
or funding and hence the unidentified savings target.  

 
10.2 The most fundamental issue continues to be assessing the 

economic impact of the various international financial issues. 
There are many number conflicting views on whether there are 
major problems ahead for the UK, “euroland” or the USA. Some 
commentators believe that there will be further financial impacts 
on the UK and, if so, there would be impacts on the Council due 
to: 

 Lower income from planning fees, building control fees 
and leisure charges. 

 Lower New Homes Bonus 
 More applicants for housing and council tax benefit 
 Higher homelessness. 
 Reductions in Government Grant. 

 
10.3 The final detail of the Government’s proposals resulting from the 

Hutton review of public sector pensions is still awaited. There are 
clear indications that changes will emerge that will reduce the cost 

40



from options such as introducing increases to employee 
contribution rates, basing pensions on career averages and 
altering the age at which pensions become payable. Some benefit 
has implicitly already been taken in the Actuary’s approach last 
year but it is not yet possible to gauge how much further benefit 
there might be and in what time-scale. 

 
 
10.4 Other issues include: 
 

 Council confirmation and decisions on the items contained in 
the savings list (Annex A) 

 Levels of pay awards, inflation and interest rates 
 Ability to maintain income levels 
 Grant changes for 2013/14 
 Impact of growth in Business Rates 
 Certainty of assumptions on New Homes Bonus and loss of 

Formula Grant (or its replacement) to fund it. 
 Costs of demographic growth 
 Extra cost of Disabled Facilities Grants 
 Change in Pension Fund contributions 
 Ability to achieve the turnover allowance 
 Impact of changes to the benefits systems.  
 Future capital programmes have items with shorter asset 

lives resulting in higher revenue cost for repaying borrowing. 
 The potential for costs relating to “orphan” contaminated land 

sites.  
 High priority service developments not already in the MTP 

and any unavoidable spending requirements not referred to 
in this report emerging. 

 Repayment of past land charge fees. 
 

 
10.5 Annex D attempts to quantify a lower and higher end assumption 

of the costs of these items in order to give a range for the level of 
savings that still need to be identified. 

 
 
11. REVISED SAVINGS RANGE 
 
11.1 Based on the details in Annex D the revised range of savings still 

to be identified is shown below: 
 

UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS 
Budget MTP 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Proposed Range      

 Lower End 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 

 Higher End 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0 

41



12. COUNCIL TAX OPTIONS 
 
12.1 The Council currently raises £7.4m through Council Tax by 

charging the average band D tax payer £124.17. It is the 20th 
lowest of the 201 District Councils which have an average of £168 
and a maximum of £310.  

 
12.2 The current financial plan is based on keeping the annual Council 

Tax increase down to 2.5% per year. The Government intend to 
replace the previous capping regime with a system whereby the 
Council can increase the Council Tax by any sum but this would 
then be limited to a pre-announced Government limit if they were 
subsequently unable to achieve a majority in a local referendum. 

 
12.3 Obviously the most critical element is the timing of the 

announcement and the size of the Government Limit. Clearly, if it 
were in excess of 2.5%, the Council could consider a higher 
increase. Alternatively it may be considered at some stage that 
Taxpayers would rather pay a higher increase to preserve services 
they would otherwise lose. To attempt this there would need to be 
very strong indications of general public support before the costs 
and administrative effort of undertaking a referendum were 
considered to be worthwhile.  

 
12.4 Some examples of the reductions in savings resulting from further 

increases in the Council Tax level are shown below: 
 

 
 
5% tax increase in 2012/13, an extra 2.5% (£3.10 per year on a band D 

property), would avoid £0.2M of savings. 
 
5% tax increase for the next 5 years (Band D Council Tax at the end of 

£158.48) would avoid £1.1M of savings. 
 
An increase next year to £168, the current District Council average, 

followed by 2.5% per year, would avoid £2.8M of savings. 
 
 
  

42



 
13. TIMETABLE FOR BUDGET APPROVAL 
 
13.1 The key dates in the process are shown below: 

 
  

September Forecast 
8 Overview & Scrutiny 
22 Cabinet 
28 Council 
  

December Draft Budget and MTP 
1 Overview & Scrutiny 
8 Cabinet 
14 Council 
  

February Final Budget, MTP and Council Tax Level for 2012/13 
2 Overview & Scrutiny 
16 Cabinet 
22 Council 

 
 
14. CONCLUSIONS 
 
14.1 The significant levels of uncertainty about various issues means 

that, at least for this stage of the budget process, it is necessary to 
consider a range for the level of extra savings that will be required. 

 
14.2 If higher levels of Council Tax increase were considered to be 

appropriate then the level of savings would reduce as illustrated in 
para. 12.4 above. 

 
14.3 It is important that the Council focuses on the items that it can 

influence and the most significant aspects are: 
 

 Confirmation and clarification of those items in Annex A 
which are still uncertain. 

 Consideration of the planning assumption for future Council 
Tax increases  

 Identification of a list of further acceptable savings that can 
be ready to introduce at short notice depending on the 
resolution of some of the unknown items.  

 
14.4 Cabinet are required to approve the basis for calculating the 

Minimum Revenue Provision each year. The recommended basis 
is shown at Annex E. 

 
 
  

43



 
13. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is requested to: 
 

Approve the annuity basis for the calculation of Minimum 
Revenue Provision as outlined in Annex E. 
 
Note the contents of this report 
 
Make appropriate comments and recommendations to 
Council on this year’s budget process  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Source Documents: 
1. Working papers in Financial Services 
2. Financial Forecast (September 2010), 2010/11 Outturn, 2011/12 

Revenue Budget and the 2012/16 MTP 
 
Contact Officer: Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services ( 01480 388103 

 
 

ANNEXS 
 
A Identified Savings List 
B Assumptions 
C Summary Forecast 
D Unidentified Savings Range 
E Basis for calculating MRP 
 

44



A
N

N
E

X
 A

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
  

S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
 

RE
VE

NU
E 

NE
T 

CA
PI

TA
L 

NO
TE

S 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

Sc
he

m
e 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
  

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
Re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

- S
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
s 

-2
60

 
-4

00
 

-7
30

 
-7

30
 

-7
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

is 
ye

ar
 w

ill 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

£3
00

k 
in

 a
 fu

ll y
ea

r 
ba

se
d 

on
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

. C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 s

ta
ge

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

PP
P 

wh
ich

 if
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

wo
ul

d 
m

or
e 

th
an

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

20
12

/1
3 

ta
rg

et
 b

ut
 le

av
e 

fu
rth

er
 

sa
vin

gs
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 2
01

3/
14

. T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ph
as

e 
of

 P
PP

 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

wo
ul

d 
fu

rth
er

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
fu

rth
er

 s
av

in
gs

 re
qu

ire
d.

 
Pa

y 
& 

al
lo

wa
nc

es
 R

ev
ie

w
 

-3
75

 
-3

75
 

-3
00

 
-3

50
 

-3
50

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
on

 s
ta

ff 
al

lo
wa

nc
es

, t
he

 2
01

1/
12

 
pa

y 
aw

ar
d 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
gr

ad
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
. T

he
 2

01
1/

12
 

ta
rg

et
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

ab
ou

t £
11

0k
 b

ut
 if

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 th
en

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r s
ub

se
qu

en
t y

ea
rs

 w
ill 

be
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 e

xc
ee

de
d.

 

Re
du

ce
d 

pa
y 

aw
ar

d 
20

10
 

-1
56

 
-1

56
 

-1
56

 
-1

56
 

-1
56

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Tu
rn

ov
er

 s
av

in
gs

 
-1

14
 

-1
14

 
-1

14
 

-1
14

 
-1

14
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

De
pe

nd
en

t u
po

n 
tu

rn
ov

er
. 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

fo
r b

ul
ky

 w
as

te
 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

No
t e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

s 
ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 s
er

vic
e 

is 
re

du
cin

g.
 

Re
du

ce
 re

fu
se

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

by
 o

ne
 

ro
un

d 
 

0 
-1

00
 

-1
00

 
-1

00
 

-1
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ro

un
d 

op
tim

isa
tio

n 
wo

rk
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 b
ut

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

pr
ac

tic
al

 to
 d

ef
er

 in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

un
til 

Ju
ne

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 re
du

ce
 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r’s
 s

av
in

g.
 

Re
cy

cli
ng

 G
at

e 
Fe

es
 

-1
8 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

(m
ar

ke
ts

) 
-5

 
-5

 
-5

 
-5

 
-5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
CC

TV
 V

an
 - 

re
m

ov
e 

sa
te

llit
e 

sy
st

em
 

-8
 

-8
 

-8
 

-8
 

-8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Va
n 

so
ld

 a
nd

 s
er

vic
e 

ce
as

ed
 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 C
CT

V 
Ca

m
er

as
 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

No
 o

f c
am

er
as

 re
du

ce
d 

an
d 

sa
vin

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

Re
du

ce
 C

CT
V 

to
 a

 b
as

ic 
se

rv
ic

e 
-1

29
 

-1
72

 
-1

72
 

-1
72

 
-1

72
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

M
ot

hb
al

l C
CT

V 
0 

-3
00

 
-3

00
 

-3
00

 
-3

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
rv

ice
 u

nd
er

 re
vie

w 
- r

an
ge

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 la

te
r i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

Co
un

try
sid

e 
- r

ed
uc

e 
st

af
f a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
co

m
e 

-1
01

 
-1

49
 

-1
99

 
-1

99
 

-1
99

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

Tr
an

sf
er

 C
ou

nt
ry

sid
e 

to
 a

 tr
us

t 
0 

0 
0 

-1
00

 
-1

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

No
 w

or
k 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
as

 n
ot

 d
ue

 u
nt

il 2
01

4/
15

 
Re

du
ce

d 
gr

ou
nd

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
0 

-1
50

 
-1

50
 

-1
50

 
-1

50
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 D

ivi
si

on
 R

eo
rg

an
isa

tio
n 

 
-1

96
 

-2
50

 
-2

50
 

-2
50

 
-2

50
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

 

45



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
 

RE
VE

NU
E 

NE
T 

CA
PI

TA
L 

NO
TE

S 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

Sc
he

m
e 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
  

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
En

vir
on

m
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 F
un

di
ng

 
-2

0 
-2

0 
-2

0 
-2

0 
35

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Sm
al

l s
ca

le
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l  

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 s
ta

ff 
sa

vin
g 

0 
-2

5 
-5

0 
-5

0 
-5

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

clu
de

d 
in

 e
rro

r -
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

Re
nt

al
 o

f s
pa

ce
 in

 P
FH

 
0 

-7
5 

-1
50

 
-1

50
 

-1
50

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pr

ob
le

m
at

ic 
- n

o 
cu

rre
nt

 in
te

re
st

 
A1

4 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 - 

as
su

m
ed

 
ca

nc
el

la
tio

n 
 

-1
00

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 - 

bu
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ill 

re
-e

m
er

ge
 w

he
n 

a 
ne

w 
A1

4 
sc

he
m

e 
do

es
 c

om
e 

fo
rw

ar
d.

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t -

 s
ta

ff 
sa

vi
ng

s 
-7

7 
-7

7 
-7

7 
-7

7 
-7

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 e
ffi

ci
en

cie
s 

-4
8 

-4
8 

-4
8 

-4
8 

-4
8 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
ch

ar
ge

s 
0 

-1
50

 
-3

00
 

-3
00

 
-5

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
is 

is 
in

 a
dd

itio
n 

to
 th

e 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

ly 
in

fla
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

of
 1

0%
 

th
is 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 in
 2

01
4/

15
. T

hi
s 

ye
ar

's 
in

cr
ea

se
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

fu
lly

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f d
el

ay
s 

in
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
up

da
te

d 
or

de
rs

. 
Fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 w
ill 

be
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 u
po

n 
fo

rm
al

 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f, 
an

d 
th

en
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l d
el

ive
ry

 o
f, 

an
 u

pd
at

ed
 c

ar
 

pa
rk

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
n.

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t e

ffi
cie

nc
ie

s 
0 

-9
5 

-9
5 

-9
5 

-9
5 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 - 
bu

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

re
tit

le
d 

as
 P

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s.

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 G
ra

nt
s 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 

 
-5

1 
-2

94
 

-2
94

 
-2

94
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

£5
1k

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 1
2/

13
; 2

01
3 

on
wa

rd
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
M

em
be

r d
ec

isi
on

 F
eb

 2
01

2 
(S

tu
dy

 in
 h

an
d)

 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 s
ta

ff 
sa

vin
gs

 
-2

01
 

-2
01

 
-2

01
 

-2
01

 
-2

01
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 
sa

vin
gs

 
  

  
-7

5 
-7

5 
-7

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
So

m
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

, t
ar

ge
t a

m
ou

nt
 lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
20

13
/1

4 
Ho

us
in

g 
st

af
f e

ffi
cie

nc
y 

sa
vin

gs
 

-4
5 

-1
00

 
-1

00
 

-1
00

 
-1

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 (p

ar
t i

s 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

st
af

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n)

  
Ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

G
ra

nt
 

-8
5 

-8
5 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Tr

an
sf

er
 o

f s
om

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ca

lls
 to

 c
al

l 
ce

nt
re

 
-1

1 
-1

1 
-1

1 
-1

1 
-1

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Bu

dg
et

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t m

ad
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
sa

vin
g 

-2
4 

-2
4 

-2
4 

-2
4 

-2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

sa
vin

g 
-2

3 
-2

3 
-2

3 
-2

3 
-2

3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t S

up
po

rt 
to

 E
CD

C
 

-7
 

-5
 

-5
 

-5
 

-5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Li
ke

ly
 

E-
M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

-2
0 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

. 
Fu

rth
er

 F
in

an
cia

l S
er

vic
es

 s
av

in
gs

 
-2

4 
-4

8 
-4

8 
-4

8 
-4

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 re
du

nd
an

cy
 

  
 

46



 

S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
 

RE
VE

NU
E 

NE
T 

CA
PI

TA
L 

NO
TE

S 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

Sc
he

m
e 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
  

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
Lo

we
r r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 B

en
ef

its
 A

dm
in

 
G

ra
nt

 
-6

7 
-5

6 
-5

6 
-5

6 
-5

6 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Su

bj
ec

t t
o 

D
W

P 
de

cis
io

ns
.  

Be
st

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
es

 - 
St

af
f s

av
in

gs
 

-8
0 

-9
0 

-1
15

 
-1

15
 

-1
15

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

ill 
on

ly 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ab

ou
t £

40
k 

in
 2

01
1/

12
 

Re
du

ce
 c

al
l c

en
tre

 h
ou

rs
 

 
-2

0 
-2

0 
-2

0 
-2

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

ill 
be

 re
vie

we
d 

at
 J

un
e 

20
12

 O
&S

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 

Re
du

ce
 c

al
l c

en
tre

 s
ys

te
m

 c
os

ts
 

0 
-1

0 
-3

0 
-3

0 
-3

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

n 
ta

rg
et

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 £

60
k 

sa
vin

gs
 fr

om
 2

01
3/

14
 

Re
du

ce
 Y

ax
le

y 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ce
nt

re
 c

os
ts

 
-3

5 
-3

5 
-5

5 
-5

5 
-5

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ho

ur
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
at

 R
am

se
y 

an
d 

Ya
xle

y 
bu

t n
ot

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
rig

in
al

ly 
en

vis
ag

ed
. O

th
er

 s
av

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
e 

an
d 

wi
ll b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

dr
af

t b
ud

ge
t i

n 
th

e 
au

tu
m

n.
 

Re
du

ce
 R

am
se

y 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ce
nt

re
 c

os
ts

 
-3

0 
-4

2 
-4

2 
-3

7 
-3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Re
du

ce
 S

t I
ve

s 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ce
nt

re
 c

os
ts

 
-2

8 
-2

8 
-4

3 
-4

3 
-4

3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

 Iv
es

 C
SC

 c
lo

se
d 

at
 e

nd
 o

f M
ay

. S
av

in
g 

ex
pe

ct
ed

. 

Re
du

ce
 h

ou
rs

 a
t H

un
tin

gd
on

 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vic

e 
Ce

nt
re

 
0 

0 
-7

 
-1

4 
-1

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
To

o 
ea

rly
 to

 a
ss

es
s.

 

Le
isu

re
 R

ec
ep

tio
n 

Au
to

m
at

io
n 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

-1
5 

 
60

 
 

 
 

 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Le
isu

re
 S

av
in

gs
 

-9
0 

 
-2

80
 

-3
90

 
-4

90
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ne
t 

sa
vin

g 
in

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 F
ut

ur
e 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
e 

St
 Iv

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ed

in
g 

as
 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

. C
ab

in
et

 h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 it
 c

an
 p

ro
ce

ed
 to

 te
nd

er
 

st
ag

e 
be

fo
re

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
fin

al
 d

ec
isi

on
.  

Tr
an

sf
er

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tre
s 

to
 a

 T
ru

st
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

-4
00

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Re

qu
ire

s 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 p
ol

itic
al

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n.
 

Ne
tw

or
k 

Sa
vi

ng
 

-3
2 

-5
3 

-5
3 

-5
3 

-5
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

He
lp

 D
es

k 
Sa

vin
g 

-7
5 

-7
5 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 A

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
r 1

1/
12

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

in
 1

2/
13

, h
ow

ev
er

, 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

of
tw

ar
e 

Li
ce

nc
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r h

om
e 

wo
rk

er
s 

c2
0k

. 
IM

D 
St

af
f s

av
in

gs
 

-1
7 

-2
3 

-3
6 

-3
6 

-1
01

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
IM

D 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 S

av
in

gs
 

-3
5 

-3
5 

-1
10

 
-3

5 
-7

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

es
e 

 s
av

in
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 
IM

D 
Sh

ar
ed

 S
er

vic
e 

In
co

m
e 

-1
0 

-1
5 

-2
0 

-3
0 

-3
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
co

m
e 

in
 2

01
1/

12
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
fo

re
ca

st
 (e

xp
ec

t c
 3

0k
), 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

ye
ar

s 
on

 ta
rg

et
.  

 
IM

D 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Sa
vin

gs
 

  
-1

5 
-1

5 
-1

5 
-1

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
St

ill 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 b
ut

 e
xp

ec
t e

xt
ra

 £
16

k 
pe

r y
ea

r s
av

in
g 

bu
t 

re
qu

ire
s 

a 
on

e-
of

f p
ay

m
en

t o
f £

72
k 

(c
ap

ita
l).

 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

- r
ed

uc
ed

 
fu

nd
in

g 
-4

0 
-8

0 
-1

00
 

-1
00

 
-1

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
n 

ta
rg

et
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

Di
st

ric
t w

id
e 

- E
 v

er
sio

n 
on

ly
 

-5
0 

-5
0 

-5
0 

-5
0 

-5
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
n 

ta
rg

et
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Hu

nt
s.

 M
at

te
rs

 - 
ce

as
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
-1

0 
-1

0 
-1

0 
-1

0 
-1

0 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

  
 

47



 

S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
 

RE
VE

NU
E 

NE
T 

CA
PI

TA
L 

NO
TE

S 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

Sc
he

m
e 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
  

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

lic
en

sin
g 

in
co

m
e 

-3
5 

-3
5 

-3
5 

-3
5 

-3
5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

- e
ffi

cie
nc

y 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

 
ch

ar
ge

s 
-7

 
-1

4 
-2

1 
-2

8 
-3

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 v

ol
um

es
 h

ol
di

ng
 u

p 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 la
te

r y
ea

rs
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 u
nc

ha
lle

ng
ed

 

Do
cu

m
en

t C
en

tre
 - 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 w

or
k 

-3
3 

-4
0 

-5
0 

-6
0 

-7
5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 e

ar
ly 

ye
ar

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

av
in

gs
. 

Le
ss

 c
er

ta
in

ty
 in

 la
te

r y
ea

rs
 a

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 w

or
k 

st
ill 

m
od

es
t 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

wa
nc

es
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
 

 
-6

 
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
. 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

wa
nc

es
 

-3
0 

-3
0 

-3
0 

-3
0 

-3
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 –
 d

oe
s 

no
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 
sm

al
le

r c
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l c

ha
ng

es
. 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 
-1

4 
-1

4 
-1

4 
-1

4 
-1

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ac

hi
ev

ed
-A

ss
um

in
g 

no
 p

ay
m

en
t t

o 
an

y 
su

cc
es

so
r t

o 
Ea

st
 o

f 
En

gl
an

d 
Re

gi
on

al
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

Ce
nt

ra
l S

er
vic

es
 - 

Re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
-1

70
 

-2
20

 
-2

20
 

-2
70

 
-2

70
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ac
hi

ev
ed

  
Ex

tra
 C

ar
 P

ar
kin

g,
 H

un
tin

gd
on

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

 
20

 
-1

8 
21

 
19

 
-6

2 
 

-2
,1

66
 

2,
16

6 
 

 
 

Va
lu

es
 a

nd
 p

ha
sin

g 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vie

w 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
fin

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
. 

CC
TV

 - 
Ca

m
er

a 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

-8
1 

-8
1 

-7
5 

-8
2 

  
Aw

ai
tin

g 
de

ci
sio

n 
on

 fu
tu

re
 o

f C
C

TV
 b

ef
or

e 
co

m
m

itt
in

g 
an

y 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

. 
IC

T 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 S

er
ve

r 
Vi

rtu
al

isa
tio

n 
10

 
10

 
10

 
10

 
10

 
-2

7 
58

 
-6

0 
-6

0 
-6

0 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t P

rin
tin

g 
Eq

ui
p.

 
 

 
 

 
  

-9
2 

 
70

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

M
ul

ti-
fu

nc
tio

na
l D

ev
ic

es
 

 
 

 
 

  
-2

 
2 

3 
1 

2 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r B

in
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
 

 
 

 
  

-1
14

 
-1

01
 

-1
18

 
-1

57
 

-2
04

 
56

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ve
hi

cle
 fl

ee
t r

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

.  
 

 
 

 
  

19
7 

-2
17

 
-4

42
 

64
 

-1
01

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Ho
us

in
g 

Ca
pi

ta
l G

ra
nt

 (n
on

-
ea

rm
ar

ke
d)

 
 

 
 

 
  

-6
4 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

 
 

48



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
 

RE
VE

NU
E 

NE
T 

CA
PI

TA
L 

NO
TE

S 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

Sc
he

m
e 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

 
  

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
Hu

nt
in

gd
on

 B
us

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

  
-8

90
 

19
0 

15
0 

 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Cr
im

e 
an

d 
Di

so
rd

er
 - 

Li
gh

tin
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 

 
 

 
  

-2
0 

2 
 

 
 

25
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Hu
nt

in
gd

on
 M

ar
in

a 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-6
2 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Pl

ay
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
 S

af
et

y 
Su

rfa
ce

 
Re

ne
wa

l 
 

 
 

 
  

 
-5

 
-4

8 
-3

7 
-3

3 
-4

8 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

G
ra

nt
s 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-6
9 

-6
9 

-6
9 

-6
9 

-6
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Cr

im
e 

an
d 

Di
so

rd
er

 - 
Li

gh
tin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-2
5 

-2
4 

-2
5 

-2
5 

-2
5 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Re
pa

irs
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
-9

0 
-9

0 
-9

0 
-9

0 
-9

0 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

So
cia

l H
ou

sin
g 

G
ra

nt
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-5
00

 
-5

00
 

-5
00

 
-5

00
 

-5
00

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt 
Pl

an
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

-8
3 

-8
3 

-8
3 

-8
9 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Sa
fe

 C
yc

le
 R

ou
te

s 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-1
94

 
-9

3 
-9

3 
-9

5 
-9

5 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

St
 N

eo
ts

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
te

gy
 P

ha
se

 2
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-9
0 

-9
0 

-8
0 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t /
Si

gn
s 

in
 

fo
ot

pa
th

s 
an

d 
ca

r p
ar

ks
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-3
5 

-3
0 

-3
0 

-3
0 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Hu
nt

in
gd

on
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
-9

0 
-9

0 
-9

0 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

St
 Iv

es
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
-8

0 
-8

0 
-8

0 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ra
m

se
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
-8

0 
-4

1 
-4

5 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Bu
s 

Sh
el

te
rs

 - 
ex

tra
 p

ro
vis

io
n 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-4
1 

-4
2 

-4
2 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
St

 Iv
es

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

 2
 - 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-2
0 

-4
25

 
-5

09
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sm

al
l S

ca
le

  -
 D

ist
ric

t W
id

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
-7

9 
-7

9 
-8

0 
-6

0 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

AJ
C 

Sm
al

l s
ca

le
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

-8
6 

-8
6 

-8
6 

-8
6 

-9
0 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Vi

lla
ge

 R
es

id
en

tia
l A

re
as

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
-5

7 
-6

0 
-6

0 
-7

6 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Ne

w 
Pu

bl
ic 

Co
nv

en
ie

nc
es

  
 

 
 

 
  

-1
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

to
ta

l 
-2

,9
55

 
-4

,2
85

 
-5

,4
56

 
-5

,7
28

 
-6

,5
71

 
-1

,1
07

 
-3

,9
39

 
-2

42
 

-2
,2

26
 

-1
,5

98
 

-8
36

 
  

49



A
N

N
E

X
 B

 
A

S
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

S
 

 

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
 

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

12
 

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

13
 

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

14
 

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

15
 

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

16
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
ay

 
2.

0%
 

2.
0%

 
2.

0%
 

2.
0%

 
2.

0%
 

P
ay

 a
w

ar
d 

1.
0%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
P

ric
es

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

3.
7%

 
13

.2
%

 
6.

0%
 

13
.2

%
 

6.
0%

 
ga

s 
0.

0%
 

1.
8%

 
3.

4%
 

6.
5%

 
12

.7
%

 
fu

el
 

8.
5%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 c

ha
rg

es
 $

$ 
 

 
10

.0
%

 
 

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fe

es
 

15
.0

%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

P
en

si
on

 r
at

e 
17

.8
%

 
17

.8
%

 
17

.8
%

 
17

.8
%

 
17

.8
%

 
 $$

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 M
T

P
 

U
til

ity
 in

fla
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

t d
ra

ft 
bu

dg
et

 s
ta

ge
 

 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

 
20

11
/ 

20
12

/ 
20

13
/ 

20
14

/ 
20

15
/ 

20
16

/ 
20

12
 

20
13

 
20

14
 

20
15

 
20

16
 

20
17

 

  
T

em
po

ra
ry

 B
or

ro
w

in
g 

an
d 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
1.

00
%

 
1.

60
%

 
2.

60
%

 
3.

60
%

 
4.

50
%

 
4.

50
%

 
  

P
W

LB
 4

0 
ye

ar
 b

or
ro

w
in

g 
5.

50
%

 
5.

60
%

 
5.

70
%

 
5.

60
%

 
5.

40
%

 
5.

30
%

 
  P

ro
vi

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

fo
r 

lu
m

p 
su

m
 p

en
si

on
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

un
de

rf
un

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

as
 o

pp
os

ed
 to

 h
av

in
g 

hi
gh

er
 

em
pl

oy
er

s’
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 a
s 

ag
re

ed
 in

 la
st

 y
ea

r’s
 M

T
P

. T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

of
f-

se
tti

ng
 fa

ll 
in

 th
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 

 A
 fo

re
ca

st
 o

f £
15

0k
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

O
ne

 L
ei

su
re

’s
 o

ut
-p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

ir 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

cl
ud

ed
. 

 A
 s

av
in

g 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
00

k 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 fr
om

 a
 r

ec
en

t I
ns

ur
an

ce
 r

et
en

de
rin

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 a

nd
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

 T
he

re
 is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

ce
rt

ai
n 

M
T

P
 s

ch
em

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

S
t. 

Iv
o 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tr
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
ne

w
 M

ul
ti-

st
or

ey
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

in
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 a

nd
 th

es
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 in
 d

et
ai

l a
t t

he
 d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 s

ta
ge

. 
 

 

50



A
N

N
E

X
 C

 
 

F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T

 

FO
RE

CA
ST

 
BU

DG
ET

 
M

TP
 

FO
RE

CA
ST

 

20
11

/1
2 

20
12

/1
3 

20
13

/1
4 

20
14

/1
5 

20
15

/1
6 

20
16

/1
7 

20
17

/1
8 

20
18

/1
9 

20
19

/2
0 

20
20

/2
1 

20
21

/2
2 

20
22

/2
3 

20
23

/2
4 

20
24

/2
5 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

20
09

/1
0 

BU
DG

ET
/M

TP
  

22
,6

15
 

21
,3

48
 

20
,9

98
 

21
,4

52
 

20
,9

49
 

21
,7

93
 

22
,0

27
 

22
,6

47
 

23
,2

84
 

23
,9

37
 

24
,6

10
 

25
,3

01
 

26
,0

10
 

26
,7

40
 

Va
ria

tio
ns

: 
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

In
te

re
st

  
-5

3 
-1

14
 

-1
41

 
-1

68
 

-7
0 

-8
3 

-1
28

 
-1

70
 

-2
10

 
-2

47
 

-2
79

 
-3

08
 

-3
32

 
-3

53
 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r L

oa
n 

Re
pa

ym
en

ts
 

(M
RP

) 
-6

4 
-6

9 
-7

9 
-9

3 
-1

06
 

-4
0 

-1
18

 
-2

07
 

-2
32

 
-3

19
 

-4
09

 
-4

92
 

-5
65

 
-6

57
 

In
fla

tio
n 

-6
60

 
-4

88
 

-1
,0

04
 

-1
,3

13
 

-1
,4

40
 

-1
,7

49
 

-1
,6

23
 

-1
,4

59
 

-1
,4

27
 

-1
,3

43
 

-1
,3

28
 

-1
,3

86
 

-1
,5

53
 

-1
,8

36
 

Un
id

en
tif

ie
d 

Sa
vin

gs
 

0 
75

1 
81

1 
1,

37
4 

1,
78

4 
2,

02
7 

2,
51

1 
2,

58
0 

2,
56

5 
2,

59
4 

2,
41

9 
2,

06
4 

1,
53

6 
88

4 

M
TP

 V
ar

ia
tio

ns
 

31
0 

74
6 

98
9 

1,
22

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 

to
ta

l 
-4

67
 

82
6 

57
6 

1,
02

9 
1,

43
7 

1,
42

3 
1,

91
0 

2,
01

2 
1,

96
5 

1,
95

4 
1,

67
1 

1,
14

6 
35

4 
-6

94
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

NE
W

 F
O

RE
CA

ST
 

22
,1

48
 

22
,1

74
 

21
,5

74
 

22
,4

81
 

22
,3

86
 

23
,2

16
 

23
,9

37
 

24
,6

59
 

25
,2

49
 

25
,8

91
 

26
,2

81
 

26
,4

47
 

26
,3

64
 

26
,0

46
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

FU
ND

IN
G

 
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Us
e 

of
 re

ve
nu

e 
re

se
rv

es
 

-3
,1

22
 

-3
,3

63
 

-1
,7

53
 

-2
,1

62
 

-7
72

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 re

ve
nu

e 
re

se
rv

es
 E

O
Y 

11
,0

50
 

7,
68

7 
5,

93
4 

3,
77

2 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 

Ne
w 

Ho
m

es
 G

ra
nt

 
-8

32
 

-1
,7

12
 

-2
,6

73
 

-3
,5

21
 

-4
,6

62
 

-5
,9

12
 

-6
,2

68
 

-6
,6

11
 

-6
,8

08
 

-7
,0

42
 

-6
,9

83
 

-6
,5

91
 

-5
,9

36
 

-5
,0

27
 

Sp
ec

ia
l C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 G
ra

nt
 

-1
84

 
-1

84
 

-1
84

 
-1

84
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

G
ra

nt
 (R

SG
) 

-1
0,

52
2 

-9
,2

88
 

-9
,0

86
 

-8
,4

76
 

-8
,5

48
 

-8
,6

24
 

-8
,7

06
 

-8
,7

92
 

-8
,8

83
 

-8
,9

81
 

-9
,1

09
 

-9
,3

36
 

-9
,5

69
 

-9
,8

09
 

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
Fu

nd
 D

ef
ic

it 
-1

05
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

Co
un

cil
 T

ax
 

-7
,3

83
 

-7
,6

27
 

-7
,8

78
 

-8
,1

37
 

-8
,4

04
 

-8
,6

79
 

-8
,9

63
 

-9
,2

56
 

-9
,5

57
 

-9
,8

68
 

-1
0,

18
9 

-1
0,

51
9 

-1
0,

86
0 

-1
1,

21
0 

CO
UN

CI
L 

TA
X 

LE
VE

L 
£1

24
.1

7 
£1

27
.2

7 
£1

30
.4

6 
£1

33
.7

2 
£1

37
.0

6 
£1

40
.4

9 
£1

44
.0

0 
£1

47
.6

0 
£1

51
.2

9 
£1

55
.0

7 
£1

58
.9

5 
£1

62
.9

2 
£1

66
.9

9 
£1

71
.1

7 

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 

0.
00

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

2.
50

%
 

£ 
in

cr
ea

se
 

£0
.0

0 
£3

.1
0 

£3
.1

8 
£3

.2
6 

£3
.3

4 
£3

.4
3 

£3
.5

1 
£3

.6
0 

£3
.6

9 
£3

.7
8 

£3
.8

8 
£3

.9
7 

£4
.0

7 
£4

.1
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fo
re

ca
st

 C
ap

ita
l S

pe
nd

in
g 

11
,9

33
 

3,
32

1 
3,

00
5 

2,
44

1 
2,

77
7 

3,
10

1 
3,

23
1 

3,
27

2 
3,

41
7 

3,
56

6 
3,

71
8 

3,
87

5 
4,

03
5 

4,
20

0 

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 n
et

  "
Bo

rro
wi

ng
" E

O
Y 

29
,1

68
 

31
,1

31
 

32
,5

36
 

33
,0

91
 

33
,7

21
 

34
,4

00
 

35
,0

77
 

35
,5

67
 

35
,9

28
 

36
,2

58
 

36
,5

75
 

36
,8

89
 

37
,2

44
 

37
,6

39
 

Ne
t I

nt
er

es
t a

nd
 B

or
ro

wi
ng

 C
os

ts
 

  
  

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
  -

 to
ta

l 
47

2 
1,

13
2 

1,
67

3 
2,

19
3 

2,
61

4 
2,

93
5 

3,
09

8 
3,

35
3 

3,
64

5 
3,

84
1 

4,
02

1 
4,

19
5 

4,
32

9 
4,

47
0 

   
  -

 a
s 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 n

et
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

2%
 

5%
 

8%
 

10
%

 
12

%
 

13
%

 
13

%
 

14
%

 
14

%
 

15
%

 
15

%
 

16
%

 
16

%
 

17
%

 
Un

id
en

tif
ie

d 
Sp

en
di

ng
 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 s
til

l r
eq

ui
re

d 
 

0 
0 

-1
50

 
-1

50
 

-1
91

 
-1

 
-1

21
 

-6
35

 
-1

,1
94

 
-1

,4
77

 
-2

,1
16

 
-3

,0
57

 
-3

,8
45

 
-4

,8
92

 

 IM
P

O
R

T
A

N
T

 –
 T

h
es

e 
sp

en
d

in
g

 a
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 b

ef
o

re
 a

llo
w

in
g

 f
o

r 
R

is
ks

 a
n

d
 U

n
kn

ow
n

s 
– 

S
ee

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

1.
1 

&
 A

n
n

ex
 D

 f
o

r 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

an
g

e.

51



ANNEX D 
REVISED UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS RANGE 
 
Paragraph 9 and Annex C of the Report are based on those issues where it is 
reasonably straightforward to make an assessment of the financial impact of the 
items.  
 
Section 11 highlights the many items where this is not possible and so the following 
two tables propose revised savings levels based on a low end and high end view of 
these difficult to assess items. 
 
  
 

LOW END ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##: 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Initial level  (Section 9 and Annex C of the report) 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 
1% increase in pay award in 2012/13 @@ 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
2% extra reduction in Government Grant in 2013/14  0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
0.4% growth per year in  Business Rates from 
2014/15    -0.2 -0.4 -0.6 

10% Reduction in  New Homes Bonus grant due to 
slower housing completions 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 

Reduction in  Government Grant  equivalent to 10% 
of New Homes Bonus increase from 2013/14  0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 

0.425% increase in net spending every year to cover 
cost of increased population. There is no provision 
for demographic growth in the forecast. 

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 

Extra £1M for disabled facilities grants this year and 
£0.5M in future years 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 

 0.5 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 
Savings Items      
Over achievement on Pay & allowances Review $$  -0.4 -0.5 -0.6 -0.7 
Over achievement on Reorganisation $$ -0.2     
Minimalist CCTV - save 2/3rds  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
Community Grants reductions – save 2/3rds  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
Minor savings items 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.4 

Low end assumption 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 
$$ Subject to staff consultation 
@@ If RPI does not fall and there is thus a need for higher than the budgeted 2.5% pay awards this 
could logically be funded from higher than 2.5% Council Tax increases. 
  

52



 

HIGHER END ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##: 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Initial level  (Section 9 and Annex C of the report) 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 
1% increase in pay award every year @@ 0.2 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.3 
3% loss in Leisure Centre fees and charges from 
12/13 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

4% extra reduction in Government Grant in 2013/14  0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 
0.4% growth per year in  Business Rates from 
2014/15    -0.2 -0.4 -0.6 

30% Reduction in  New Homes Bonus grant due to 
slower housing completions 0.3 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.5 

Reduction in  Government Grant  equivalent to 15% 
of New Homes Bonus increase from 2013/14  0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 

0.85% increase in net spending every year to cover 
cost of increased population. There is no provision 
for demographic growth in the forecast. 

0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.1 

Removal of turnover allowance due to lower turnover 
and employee numbers  0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 

Residual cost of fraud team if not funded by 
Government  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Potential reduction in tax base from non-collectable 
Council Tax following localisation reductions 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Extra £1M for disabled facilities grants this year and 
£0.5M in future years 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 

 1.1 2.9 3.4 4.4 5.2 
Savings Items      
Over achievement on Pay & allowances Review $$  -0.3 -0.4 -0.5 -0.6 
Over achievement on Reorganisation $$ -0.2     
Basic CCTV  save 1/3rd 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Transfer Countryside to a trust - save none   0.1 0.1 0.1 
Rental of space in PFH -  save half  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
Increase in car park charges -  save half 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 
Community Grants reductions - save 1/3rd  0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Transfer Leisure Centres to a Trust – save none    0.4 0.4 
Minor savings items 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.8 

Higher end assumption 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0 
 
@@ Assumes RPI does not fall and thus a need for higher than the budgeted 2.5% pay awards. This 
should logically be funded from higher than 2.5% Council Tax increases. 
 
  

53



NOT INCLUDED IN EITHER ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##: 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

1% increase in non-pay inflation rate if 
fees and charges adjusted 
appropriately each year&& 

   0.1 0.1 

2% increase in Pension Fund 
contributions in 2013/14  0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 

1% increase in all interest rates from 
2011/12 onwards 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 

&& Excludes income items where above inflation increases already assumed 
 
 

Reorganisation 
Extra savings needed (+) ##: 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Target Saving -0.4 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7 
Achieved -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 
PPP phases 1 and 2 $$ -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 
Still required -0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
$$ Excludes any protection and redundancy costs 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

54



 
 
 

ANNEX E 
 
 
 

ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY 2011/12 
 
When a Council finances capital expenditure from borrowing, the resulting costs are 
charged to the Council Taxpayers over the whole life of the asset so that those who 
benefit from the asset share the cost.  There are two elements to the cost – the 
interest on the borrowing is charged in the year it is payable, whilst the money to 
repay the sum borrowed is charged as a “minimum revenue provision” (MRP) to the 
revenue account each year, starting with the year after the borrowing takes place. 
Once money is in the MRP it can only be used for repaying borrowing. 
 
The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has issued 
guidance on what constitutes prudent provision and this requires the Council to 
determine an approach and publish this each year.  
 
There are three options for the calculation of the MRP: 
 
Equal annual installments 
This is the easiest and simplest approach but the combination of the equal 
installments of principal and the reducing interest makes the cost high to start with 
but then reducing year by year. 
 
Depreciation basis  
The Depreciation basis is the most complex. It starts by mirroring the equal annual 
installments method but also requires adjustments every time the life of an asset is 
varied. 
 
Annuity basis 
By setting the rate for the annuity equal to the expected long term borrowing rate the 
cost is the same for each year like a conventional mortgage. It is only marginally 
more work than the equal installments approach. This was the basis agreed in 
previous years. 
 
 

The Annuity basis is, by far, the most equitable approach and it is 
therefore proposed that it continues to be the Council’s MRP policy. 

 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

          
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS   
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)                          6th SEPTEMBER 2011 
(ECONOMIC WELL-BEING)                           8th SEPTEMBER 2011 
(ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING)             13th SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

 
WORK PLAN STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Members of the Panel to review their 

programme of studies and to be informed of studies being undertaken by the 
other Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 

 
2. STUDIES 
 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic well-

being of the District. This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide remit to 
examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the Council’s service areas which have been 

identified as follows:- 
 

Social Well-Being 
 
Environmental and Community Health 
Housing  
One Leisure 
Legal and Democratic Services (part) 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 
 
Environmental Well-Being 
 
Operations 
Environmental Management 
Planning Services 
 
Economic Well-Being 
 
Information Management 
Financial Services 
Customer Services 
Legal and Democratic Services (part) 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 

 
2.3 Details of ongoing studies are set out in the attached Appendix. 
 
2.4 Members are reminded that if they have a specific interest in any study area 

which is not being considered by their Panel there are opportunities for 
involvement in all the studies being undertaken. 

 

Agenda Item 7

57



 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
 
Contact Officers: Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388006 
 
   Mrs A Jerrom, Member Development Officer 
   01480 388009 
 
   Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388234 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 
ONGOING STUDIES 

 
STUDY 
 

OBJECTIVES PANEL STATUS TYPE 
 

Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy 

To consider issues relating 
to Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy. 

Economic Well-Being Further information 
requested on the cost of the 
tourism service and the 
benefits it brings to both the 
Council and to the District. 
 
This study is on hold until 
circumstances change. 
 

Whole Panel Study 

Consultation Processes To review the Council’s 
current consultation 
processes with a view to 
determining whether the 
approach taken to 
consultation is suitable and 
consistent across the 
authority. 
 

Social Well-Being Final report submitted to the 
Cabinet in June 2011. The 
Managing Director 
(Resources) to undertake 
investigations as to how the 
current process can be 
improved and to report to 
the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel (Social Well-Being) 
and Executive Councillors 
on the outcomes. 
 

Working Group 

Gypsy & Traveller Welfare 
 

To examine existing gypsy 
and traveller sites in the 
District with a view to 
informing any future 
Planning Policy on sites. 
 
 

Social Well-Being Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting. Following 
consultation with the 
Chairman, agreed that the 
study would proceed once 
Government guidance has 
been issued on future 
provision requirements. 
 

To be determined. 

Health Implications of the 
Night Time Economy 

To follow up the previous 
study undertaken by the 
former Overview and 

Social Well-Being Social Well-Being Panel to 
consider whether to 
incorporate this study into 

To be determined. 

59



 
Scrutiny (Service Support). their work programme. 

Further information to be 
submitted to a future Panel 
meeting. 
 

Leisure Centre Financial 
Performance and 
Employment Structure 

To review the overall 
financial performance and 
monitoring arrangements. 
To consider the current / 
future business structure. 
 
To consider whether an 
increase in income might 
be made by charging non-
residents of the District a 
higher rate to use the 
Council’s leisure centres. 
 

Economic Well-Being 
and Social Well-Being 

Meetings of the Working 
Group held on 3rd March, 
28th April, 23rd June and 1st 
September 2011.  
 
Interim report submitted to 
Cabinet on 23rd June 2011. 
Cabinet requested the 
Executive Councillor for 
Organisational Development 
to review the Council’s IT 
costs, including the basis 
upon which the IT network 
service is re-charged to 
users.  
 

Working Group 

Cambridgeshire Local 
Investment Plan 

To review the implications 
of the Investment Plan 
upon local housing, to 
include the potential 
shortfalls in the delivery of 
affordable housing within 
the District, identify what 
housing is due to come 
forward and to include 
reference to the underlying 
links between housing and 
planning.  
 

Social Well-Being Report to be considered at 
Panel’s October 2011 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Whole Panel Study. 

CCTV Provision within the 
District 
 

To review the impact of the 
Council’s proposal to 
cease the CCTV service 
with effect from April 2012. 

Environmental Well-
Being and Social Well-
Being 
 

Members received an 
update at their July meeting.  
Further information is 
expected in the Autumn. 

Whole Panel Study. 

60



 
Voluntary Sector To seek alternative ways 

of supporting the Voluntary 
Sector from 2013/14 
onwards. 
  

Social Well-Being Working Group meeting 
held on 23rd August 2011 
with the District Council’s 
Community Health 
Manager. Site visits to be 
undertaken in September.   
 

Working Group 

 A14 improvements. To review the implications 
to the local economy of the 
decision not to proceed 
with the A14 
improvements. 
 

Economic Well-Being 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreed to invite a 
representative of the 
Highways Agency to a 
future meeting to discuss 
their plans in the event of an 
interruption to traffic flow. 

Whole Panel Study. 

Tree Strategy To form a strategy in 
conjunction with the Tree 
Officers for the retention 
and planting of trees. 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Working Group met on 27 
July 2011. Draft Tree 
Strategy circulated to 
officers for comment. 
Councillor Davies to report 
to meeting. 
 

Working Group. 

Land Use for Agricultural 
Purpose in the context of 
planning policies and its 
contribution to the local 
economy. 
 

To review the lack of 
promotion and protection 
of land for this purpose. 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Scoping report to be 
submitted to a meeting in 
the Autumn. 

To be determined. 

Rural Transport To review the provision of 
transportation in rural 
areas. 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Transport for 
Cambridgeshire report 
received in July 2011. 
Comments conveyed to 
Cabinet. 
 

To be determined. 

Rural Crime To be determined. Social Well-Being Panel  Under consideration by the 
County Council’s Safer and 
Stronger Communities 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Joint Authority Working 
Group. 

61



 
Review of Neighbourhood 
Forums in Huntingdonshire  

To undertake a review of 
the Neighbourhood 
Forums in 
Huntingdonshire. 
 

Social Well-Being Suggested by the Cabinet at 
its meeting held on 19th May 
2011. Background report to 
be considered by Panel in 
September. 
 

To be determined. 

Homelessness To consider the emerging 
issue of homelessness and 
the Council’s capacity to 
deal with the matter. 
 

Social  Well-Being Background report to be 
submitted to a future Panel 
meeting. 

To be determined. 

Maintenance of Water 
Courses 
 

To receive a presentation 
on the maintenance 
arrangements in place for 
Water Courses within the 
District. 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Presentation to be delivered 
at a future meeting.  

To be determined. 

Waste Collection and 
Recycling Policies 

To investigate the 
Council’s waste collection 
and recycling policies. 
 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Scoping report to be 
submitted to a future 
meeting. 

To be determined. 

District Council Support 
Services 

To review the District 
Council’s support services. 

Economic Well-Being Scoping report to be 
submitted to a future 
meeting in the Autumn. 
 

To be determined. 

Development of the 
Alconbury Airfield site. 
 

To consider the 
implications for the local 
economy from the 
establishment of a local 
enterprise zone on the 
former Alconbury Airfield 
site. 

Economic Well-Being To be determined. To be determined. 

 
 
 
 
 

62



 
POSSIBLE FUTURE STUDIES 

 

The Employees 
Performance Development 
Review Process 
 
 

To review the current 
process. 

Economic Well-Being Amendments to the 
Performance Related Pay 
System are being 
considered as part of the 
current years pay 
negotiations and the 
consultation on pay 
structure. 
. 

To be determined. 

Housing Register To review the availability of 
larger houses for letting 
the Council’s housing 
register. 

Social Well-Being To consider a request by 
the Economic Well-Being 
Panel to investigate this 
issue. 
 

To be determined. 

Business Rates To consider the 
implications to the 
Authority from changes to 
Business Rates.  
 

Economic Well-Being Report to be prepared 
when further information is 
available. 

To be determined. 

63



64

This page is intentionally left blank



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date For 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
13/05/09 

 
 
 

10/02/11 
 
 
 
 

07/07/11 
 

Customer Services  
 
Quarterly performance reports to be 
circulated informally to the Panel twice 
per year and formally twice per year. 
 
Head of Customer Services to submit a 
report after a 12 month period reviewing 
the impact of the changes to Customer 
Services. 
 
Asked Executive Councillor for 
Resources and Customer Services to 
give further consideration to the actions 
which could be taken in the absence of 
any additional funding being made 
available from the Department of Work & 
Pensions in April 2012. 

 
 
Latest report 
considered in July 
2011. 
 
Report to be 
considered in June 
2012. 
 
 
 

 
 
Next report due February 2012. 
 
 
 
Report due in June 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
02/02/12 

 
 
 

06/12 
 

 

 
 

 
13/01/11 

 
 
 
 
 

10/02/11 
 
 
 
 
 

07/07/11 
 
 
 

 

Leisure Centres 
 
Presentation received at January 2011 
Panel meeting. Agreed to establish a 
working group with representatives of the 
Social Well-Being Panel.  
 
 
Agreed to extend remit to review whether 
an increase in income might be made by 
charging non-residents of the District a 
higher rate to use the Council’s Leisure 
Centres. 
 
Councillor M F Shellens reported that he 
had recently received admission figures 
which had been produced on a 12 month 
rolling average which he would make 
available for the review. 

 
 
Councillors J J Dutton, 
S Greenall, Mrs D 
Reynolds, D M Tysoe, 
Mr R Coxhead and Mr 
R Hall appointed to 
working group. 
 
 

 
 
Meetings held on 3rd March, 28th April, 23rd 
June and 1st September 2011. Next meeting 
to be held on 13th October 2011. 
 
Interim report submitted to Cabinet meeting 
on 23rd June 2011. Executive Councillor for 
Organisational Development to review the 
Council’s IT costs, including the basis upon 
which the IT network service is re-charged to 
users.  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A
genda Item

 8

65



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date For 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
14/04/11 
 
 
 
 

Huntingdon Multi-Storey Car Park 
 
Councillor M F Shellens and Mr R Hall 
reported on their investigations into the 
business case for the multi-storey car 
park in Huntingdon. 
 
Suggested that the Council should 
introduce a more detailed methodology 
for the assessment of the projects that it 
is considering, to include provision for 
social benefit and risk assessment. A 
report has been requested on terms for 
the methodology for this purpose. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to be submitted 
to a future meeting in 
the Autumn. 

 
 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
06/10/11 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The Financial Implications of the 
Council’s future housing 
responsibilities 
 
Suggested as a potential area for study. 

  
 
 
 
Copy of Cambridgeshire Local Investment 
Plan to be provided to Councillor M Shellens 
when available. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
18/05/11 

 
 

 

Corporate Plan Working Group 
 
Councillors D M Tysoe and S Greenall   
have been appointed to the Corporate 
Plan Working Group. 
 

 
 
Quarterly performance 
reports to be submitted 
to all Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels. 

 
 
Performance Management Monitoring is 
currently under review. Further information to 
be forthcoming.  

 
 

TBC 
 

 
 

 
15/0710 

 
 

Scrutiny of Partnerships 
 
Agreed to consider the Economic 
Prosperity & Skills Performance Report 
at a future meeting. 

 
 
 

 
 
Future of Strategic Partnership is currently 
under consideration. Further information to be 
provided shortly.  

 
 

TBC 

 
 

66



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date For 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
10/02/11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
07/11/11 
 
 
 
 

A14 Improvements 
 
Received an update on the steps that are 
being taken to pursue this matter with the 
Government. Panel to receive further 
updates on progress. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed that a representative of the 
Highways Agency should be invited to a 
future meeting to discuss their plans in 
the event of an interruption to traffic flow. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invitation sent to 
Highways Agency. 
 

 
 
In terms of the wider A14 improvements to 
replace the cancelled scheme, the 
Governance Group held their first meeting on 
5th July. The DfT has not convened a meeting 
of the Project Board, of which HDC will be 
part. It is our understanding that the DfT still 
plan to make their final recommendations in 
Summer 2012.  However there have been 
local discussions between the County Council 
and relevant Districts, inc. HDC, about short-
term measures that could be considered. It is 
understood that there is some available 
funding (amount unknown) at DfT level that 
would need to be spent by March 2012 and 
that the County Council, at very short-notice, 
has been asked to submit a range of 
schemes that could be delivered within that 
timeframe relating to the A14. 
 
Awaiting confirmation that a representative 
will attend. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 
 

 
 
 
07/07/11 

 
 

District Council Support Services 
 
Requested a scoping report for 
consideration at a future meeting.  

 
 
Report to be submitted 
to a future meeting in 
the Autumn. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
06/10/11 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

67



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date For 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 

 
10/6/10 

 
 
 
 

10/06/10 
 

Visitor Development & Town Centre 
Vibrancy 
 
Received a presentation by the Head of 
People, Performance & Partnerships and 
the Sustainable Economic Development 
Manager. 
 
Requested a further report outlining the 
cost of the service and the benefits it 
brings to both the Council and the 
District. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to be submitted 
to a future meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This study is currently on hold until 
circumstances change. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 

 
 
 
 

 
10/09/09 

 
 

 

Employees Performance Development 
Review process 
 
Agreed to include the Employees 
Performance Development Review 
process in their work programme for the 
forthcoming year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Amendments to Performance Related Pay 
System are being considered as part of the 
current year’s pay negotiations and the 
review of pay. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
07/07/11 

 
 

 

Proposal for Enterprise Zone 
 
Requested further information with 
regard to the implications to the local 
economy from the establishment of a 
local enterprise zone at the former 
Alconbury Airfield site. 

  
 
Presentation to be given to November 
meeting. 

 
 
03/11/11 

 
 

 
07/07/11 

 
 

 

Changes to Business Rates 
 
Requested further information with 
regard to the Government’s Statement on 
Business Rates. 

  
 
Information to be made available when it was 
appropriate. 

 
 

TBC 

 

68



 
 

 
DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn    DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt     Edition 116 

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 24th June to 
29th July 2011. 
 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section ' (01480) 388007 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL 
REPORT 2010/11 
 
In accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice, the Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) has considered 
the Council’s performance for the year 
ending 31st March 2011 in the 
investment of its capital receipts. As 
part of this, the Panel has also been 
acquainted with the Council’s 
Strategies for both borrowing and 
investing funds in the current year. 
 
The Panel was pleased to note that the 
performance of the funds in a year 
when rates have stayed low has been 
very good, with both the benchmark 
and the budgeted investment interest 
having been significantly exceeded. 
 
Members discussed a number of issues 
including the management of the 
Council’s cash flow, the potential to 
lend monies to other authorities and the 
reduction in the average interest rates 
that have been paid on investments 
during the year. 
 
The Panel has also discussed the 
Authority’s Strategy for long-term 
borrowing and noted that the capital 
programme for the next 5 years 
assumes expenditure of approximately 
£23M plus any slippages from 
individual years. Following the 
reduction of the Council’s reserves over 
the last few years, all investments are 
now being managed in-house. 
 
 

 
Subsequently, the Cabinet has noted 
the views of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel and recommended the report to 
Council. 
 
ELECTRONIC NEWSLETTER FOR 
RESIDENTS  
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) has received a 
presentation on future proposals for 
communicating with residents in 
Huntingdonshire.  These include the 
production of an electronic newsletter 
on a quarterly basis at a cost of £1095 
per annum. 
 
Having indicated their support in 
principle to the electronic proposal for a 
twelve month trial period, Members 
queried whether it would be possible to 
reproduce the electronic version within 
other parish magazines. It has also 
been suggested that the Council could 
utilise Parish Council websites to 
signpost residents to relevant 
information.  
 
Discussion has ensued on a number of 
issues including the use of an externally 
managed database to store the email 
addresses of residents who had 
registered their interest in receiving 
council information and whether e-
communication would disadvantage a 
particular section of society.  Members 
were keen to ensure that a thorough 
risk assessment had been undertaken 
of the company involved to ensure that 
the Council did not fall foul of any anti-
discrimination legislation. 

Agenda Item 9

69



Edition 116    DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn    DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt  
 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section ' (01480) 388007 
 

page 2 
 

 

 
Lastly, Members were of the opinion 
that it would be unnecessary to produce 
a supplementary printed version of the 
newsletter. 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICES QUARTERLY 
REPORT  
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) has considered 
the quarterly performance report for 
Customer Services.  As changes to the 
opening hours at the Ramsey and 
Yaxley Centres had not yet come into 
effect, Members noted that it would not 
be possible to review the impact of 
these changes until June 2012. 
 
Customer satisfaction levels continued 
to be maintained despite a reduction in 
staffing levels. Members discussed a 
number of issues including the 
business continuity arrangements for 
the Call Centre, the opening hours of 
the Yaxley Customer Service Centre 
and whether any consideration had 
been given to providing a service for 
other authorities. 
 
Having regard to the increasing number 
of benefit enquiries being received in 
the current economic climate, the Panel 
has noted that it was uncertain at this 
stage as to whether the subsidy from 
the Department for Work and Pensions 
for housing benefit would continue after 
April 2012. With this in mind, the Panel 
has asked the Executive Councillor to 
give further consideration to the actions 
which could be taken in the absence of 
the receipt of any further funding. 
 
ONE LEISURE FINANCE 
 
In conjunction with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel for Social Well-Being, 
the Economic Well-Being Panel has 
received an update on the work of the 
Group which had been established to 
review the performance of One Leisure  
 

 
and to make recommendations on the 
service’s future strategic direction. 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Panels have 
reviewed the contents of their draft 
Annual Report for 2010/11. The Report 
summarises the Panels’ activities over 
the past year and contains illustrations 
of their impact and the results that they 
have achieved. 
 
SHARED HOME IMPROVEMENT 
AGENCY SERVICES 
 
Details of a proposal to establish a 
shared Home Improvement Agency 
Service with Cambridge City and South 
Cambridgeshire District Councils was 
considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Social Well-Being).  
 
Owing to a number of concerns raised 
by Members, the Panel has requested 
the attendance of the Managing 
Director (Communities, Partnerships 
and Projects), the Head of Housing 
Services and the Executive Councillor 
for Resources and Customer Services 
to attend the Panel’s September 2011 
meeting. Concerns related to the 
potential redundancies which might 
result, the impact of an increased travel 
requirement on staff, the effect of a  
merger on the ability to deliver a 
consistent service using best practice. 
 
ANNUAL REPORT ON 
ORGANISATIONS SUPPORTED BY 
GRANTS VIA SERVICE LEVEL 
AGREEMENTS 2010-11 
 
The performance of voluntary 
organisations in receipt of funding from 
the Council through service level 
agreements was received and noted by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Social Well-Being). All organisations 
are monitored against a set of agreed  

70



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn    DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt     Edition 116 
 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section ' (01480) 388007 
 

page 3 
 
 

 

 
performance indicators and other 
organisational criteria on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) – 
PROGRESS 
 
It was reported to Members of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Social 
Well-Being) that Circle had not yet 
assumed responsibility for the 
management of Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital. Circle’s intention to report to 
the Panel in September will therefore 
be deferred to another meeting. 
 
REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL  
MONITORING: 2010/11 OUTURN 
AND 2011/12 BUDGET  
 
The Cabinet has noted the final outturn 
for revenue and expenditure in 2010/11 
and variations already identified in the 
current year. Executive Councillors 
were pleased to note that as a result of 
under spending the Council has been 
successful in saving an additional £1 
million in reserves. 
 
Executive Councillors also have been 
apprised of variations in the capital 
programme in the current year and 
adjustments in the 2011/12 budget.  
 
UPDATE ON SURFACE WATER 
FLOODING ISSUES 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny 
(Environmental Well-being) Panel has 
again requested a response from 
Anglian Water to long term surface 
water flooding issues in St Ives. 
 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE FUTURE 
TRANSPORT “TRANSPORT FOR 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE” 
 
Having considered a report outlining 
plans for a collaborative approach to 
future countywide transport provision  

 
through the Cambridgeshire Future 
Transport Initiative, the Overview and 
Scrutiny (Environmental Well-being) 
Panel has highlighted to Cabinet the 
importance of safeguarding the 
Council’s interests in community 
transport. 
 
The Panel has in principle supported a 
suggestion that the District Council’s 
rural transport budget is aligned with 
other Cambridgeshire partners in order 
to provide a more efficient and cost 
effective service. However Members do 
not want to see Council funds 
committed without the service being 
protected, or replaced as part of the 
project, as these often provide a lifeline 
to rural communities. 
 
Subsequently, the Cabinet has 
supported the on-going development of 
the Initiative and the work of a cross 
authority Member led Governance and 
Solutions Group as they support the 
Council’s objectives. 
  
 CCTV PROVISION 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny 
(Environmental Well-Being) Panel 
has been acquainted with progress of 
negotiations to secure financial support 
for the Council’s CCTV service.   
 
The Panel has taken into account the 
views of fellow Councillors on the value 
of CCTV. A petition from residents in St 
Ives requesting the installation of an 
additional camera in the Town will be 
considered at the next meeting. 
  
The Panel had been disappointed to 
hear that, despite the considerable use 
made of the service by them, the Police 
have declined to contribute to the 
running costs of CCTV.  Whilst 
acknowledging the need for the Council 
to make savings, the Panel has 
requested that all avenues are explored 
in order to maintain the service.  

71



Edition 116    DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn    DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt  
 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section ' (01480) 388007 
 

page 4 
 

 

 
MONITORING OF SECTION 106 
AGREEMENTS 
 
Having been provided with an update 
on the receipt and expenditure by the 
Council of money negotiated under 
Section 106 Agreements, the Overview 
and Scrutiny (Environmental  
Well-Being) Panel has been given 
assurance that there is no possibility of 
payments being allowed to expire. 
 
REPRESENTATION ON 
ORGANISATIONS. 
 
The Cabinet has appointed Councillor P 
L E Bucknell to serve on the Nene & 
Ouse Community Transport Board of 
Trustees and Councillors S Cawley, J J 
Dutton and T D Sanderson to the One 
Leisure Huntingdon Sports Centre Joint 
Committee. 
 
LEISURE CENTRE MANAGEMENT 
AGREEMENTS 
 
The Cabinet has been advised that the 
five secondary schools linked to the 
leisure centres sites have committed 
themselves to achieving Academy 
status.  As a consequence the 
ownership of the school sites will 
transfer from the County to the 
appropriate schools/colleges and the 
associated management agreements 
will need to be renegotiated. With this in 
mind, the Cabinet has authorised the 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services, after consultation with the 
Executive Councillor for Health and 
Active Communities, to negotiate and 
finalise the draft heads of terms for the 
leisure centres and to enter into lease 
and new management agreements as 
necessary. 
 
DEVELOPMENT OF ONE LEISURE, 
ST IVES 
 
The Cabinet has considered four 
potential options to re-model the St Ives  

 
Leisure Centre.  The proposals have 
been designed to reduce One Leisure’s 
net operating costs and to increase 
admissions and participation levels to 
meet both Government and Council 
health agenda targets.  
 
Executive Councillors were conscious 
that the current rifle range facility had 
not been incorporated into the 
remodelling proposals.  In that respect, 
the Cabinet has noted that the range 
returns a minimal amount of income 
and that the Rifle and Pistol Club was 
not in a position to make a significant 
contribution to the cost of providing a 
smaller facility within the development.  
 
Having considered the views of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
(Economic Well Being and Social Well 
Being) the Cabinet has supported 
Option B for the redevelopment of the 
Centre and has requested the Leisure 
Centres General Manager to issue 
tenders in respect of this.  Following the 
final tender evaluation a further report 
will be submitted to Cabinet to include 
an assessment of the business case for 
the proposal. 
 
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY – 
HUNTINGDON 
 
Part of Public Footpath No 9 crosses 
the proposed development site for the 
new food store, petrol filling station and 
other retail and residential units on land 
between John Street and George Street 
in Huntingdon.  The Development 
Management Panel has agreed that an 
order be made under Section 257 of the 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 to 
stop up that part of the footpath which 
will be obstructed by the new 
development on the understanding that 
an alternative footway will be created 
as part of the development of 
Huntingdon West and in place before 
the existing route is stopped up. 
 

72



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn    DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt     Edition 116 
 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section ' (01480) 388007 
 

page 5 
 
 

 

 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
APPLICATIONS 
 
At its July meeting, the Development 
Management Panel determined eight 
applications and of these seven were 
approved and one refused.  An 
application for a new dwelling off the 
Great Whyte in Ramsey was deferred 
to enable further consultation with the 
applicant to secure an amended 
scheme which preferably could 
comprise a single storey dwelling using 
materials which would reflect the 
location of the development in a 
conservation area. 
 
An application resulting in the 
permanent use of land as a residential 
caravan site for gypsy families at 5 
Acres Field, St Ives Road, Woodhurst 
also was approved. 
 
APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION 
 
The Standards Committee has 
approved an application for 
dispensation received from St Ives 
Town Council which would enable  four 
newly elected Councillors to speak and 
vote on matters relating to the Corn 
Exchange should these arise at 
meetings of the Town Council.  The 
remaining Members of the Council had 
previously been granted dispensation 
for the same purpose.  The Town 
Council would be unable to deal with 
business relating to the Corn Exchange 
unless these dispensations were in 
place because of the interests that  
Members would be required to declare. 

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - FORWARD PLAN
	4 CALL CENTRE OPTIONS BEYOND 2012
	5 DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET
	6 FINANCIAL FORECAST
	7 WORKPLAN STUDIES
	8 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (ECONOMIC WELL-BEING) - PROGRESS
	9 SCRUTINY

